ANNOTATED BIBLIOGRAPHY

Of Literature on Cooperative Movement in S-E Asia

SUPPLEMENT FIRST HALF-YEARLY: JUNE 1973





INTERNATIONAL COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE

REGIONAL OFFICE & EDUCATION CENTRE FOR SOUTH-EAST ASIA POST BOX 3312, 43 FRIENDS' COLONY, NEW DELHI 110-014. INDIA

S U P P L E M E N T

FIRST HALF-YEARLY: JUNE 1973

ANNOTATED BIBLIOGRAPHY OF LITERATURE ON COOPERATIVE MOVEMENT IN SOUTH-EAST ASIA

INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ALLIANCE

REGIONAL OFFICE & EDUCATION CENTRE FOR SOUTH-EAST ASIA · Post Box No. 3312, 43 Friends Colony,

NEW DELHI - 110 014. (I N D I A)

International Co-operative Alliance Alliance Coopérative Internationale Internationaler Genossenschaftsbund Международный Кооперативный Альянс



Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends' Colony, Post Box Number 3312, New Delhi-110-014 India. telephone 63-1541, telegrams "Interallia" New Delhi.

Your ref.

Our ref. BIB/S(I)73/RP.

10th December, 1973.

Dear Co-operator:

We are enclosing herewith the First Half-Yearly Supplement - 1973 of the Annotated Bibliography of Literature on Co-operative Movement in South-East Asia. The Supplement includes publications issued by the Co-operative Movement in South-East Asian Region and also the literature published by individual authors, private publishers and other national and international organizations, on the Co-operative Movement of the Region, since January 1973. The publications issued before January 1973 for which information was received by us late for inclusion in the Second Half-Yearly Supplement - 1972 are also included in this Supplement.

Kindly acknowledge the receipt and let us know how useful you find this Supplement of the Annotated Bibliography.

With co-operative greetings,

Yours sincerely,

B. D. Pandey

Librarian,

Encl:

ANNOTATED BIBLIOGRAPHY OF LITERATURE ON COOPERATIVE MOVEMENT IN SOUTH-EAST ASIA

HALF-YEARLY SUPPLEMENT

COMPILED BY

: B. D. PANDEY,

LIBRARIAN, I.C.A., NEW DELHI.

ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION : Indian

Indian Rs. 7.50 or US \$1.00

We also publish the DCUMENTATION BULLETIN FOR SOUTH-EAST ASIA; is divided into two parts, the first part consists of the annotated list of selected articles on co-operation and allied subjects, and the second part consists of a classified list of books added to the ICA Library.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, PLEASE CONTACT

The Publications Section, INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ALLIANCE, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, Post Box No. 3312, 43 Friends Colony (East), NEW DELHI - 110 014.

INDIA

CONTENTS

	SUBJECTS			PAGE NO
1.	Co-operation General	-		1 - 11
2	Co-operative Housing	-	-	12 - 14
3.	Co-operative Credit, Banking	and Finance	-	15 - 21
4.	Co-operative Insurance	-		22
5.	Industrial Co-operatives	-	~	23
6.	Agricultural Co-operatives	~	-	24 - 26
7.	Dairy Co-operatives	-	~	27
8.	Fisheries Co-operatives	-	~	28
9.	Service Co-operatives	-		29
10.	Co-operative Trade and Market	ing	-	30 - 34
11.	Consumers Co-operatives	-	-	35 - 3 6
12.	Co-operative Electrification	-		37
13.	Co-operative Legislation	-	_	38 - 43
14.	Co-operative Education	-	_	44 - 46
15.	Multipurpose Co-operatives		~	47 - 48
16.	Co-operative Book-Keeping and	Management	-	49 - 50
17.	Co-operative Audit	***		51.

CO-OPERATION GENERAL

INTERNATION ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

The Aims and Principles of Cooperatives and Their Application in the Developing Countries, by P.E. Weeraman.

International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, (India), 1973, pages 44 (mimeo.).

AUSTRALIA

Language : English

CO-OPERATIVE FEDERATION OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA:
Minutes and Report: 53rd Conference: The War Memorial Civic
Centre, Cottesloe, 26th and 27th March, 1973.
The Co-operative Federation of Western Australia, 569 Wellington
Street, Perth, Western Australia, 1973, pages 60, non-priced.

BANGLADESH

Language : English.

BANGLADESH JATIYA SAMABAYA UNION:

Report of the General Secretary on the Role of the Union Since the Dawn of Independence in 1971. Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union, Samabaya Sadan, 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area, Dacca-2, 1973, pages 33, non-priced.

- - : Proceedings of the 1st. National Conference of Chairman, Secretaries & Other Representatives of District Co-operative Unions & the National Level Co-operative Organisations of Bangladesh, held in Dacca on 17th & 18th February 1973, under the auspices of Bangla-Desh Jatiya Samabaya Union, Dacca. Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union, Samabaya Sadan, 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area, Dacca-2, 1973, pages 28.
- ICA: The Needs of Cooperative Movement of Bangladesh: Report of the ICA/BJSU National Seminar held at Dacca, Bangladesh, June 1972. International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014 (India), and the Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union, 9-D Motijheel

BANGLADESH (contd.)

Language : English

Commercial Area, Dacca-2, (Bangladesh), 1972, pages 115, price Indian Rs. 10.00

A National Seminar on the subject was jointly held by the ICA Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia and the Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union, in June 1972 at Dacca. The Seminar has helped to focus the minds of the leaders, both official and elected, on the entire range of the needs of the more important sections of the Cooperative Movement of the country. The Seminar has been an exercise of the cooperators themselves in planning in a general way the development of their movement. The findings of the Seminar should help the Movement as well as the government to steer clear of uncooperative ventures which masquerade as cooperative using the "Co-operative" name and the cooperative structure but not the cooperative method, thereby doing grave harm to the cause of Cooperation.

The Seminar discussed subjects like the structure and management policy of the Cooperative Movement, cooperative legislation, cooperative education and training, cooperative banking and credit, agricultural cooperation, consumer cooperation, fishermen's cooperatives, housing cooperative, transport cooperatives, weavers' cooperatives, etc.

RAUSHAN ALI, M.:

Background Paper on the Co-operative Movement of Bangladesh.
Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Cooperative Union), Samabaya Sadan, Motijheel Commercial Area, Dacca-2, 1972, pages 47+appendix (mimeo.).

INDÎ A

Language : English

ABRAHAM, Sarojini (Mrs.):

Cooperatives in India: A Preliminary Investigation. The Author, D-186, Defence Colony, New Delhi-110003, 1971, pages 105 (mimeo).

INDIA (contd.)

Language: English

ASSAM (CO-OPERATIVE DEPARTMENT):

Annual Administrative Report 1968-69. Statistical Cell, Co-operative Department, Government of Assam, Shillong, 1973, pages 66.

CCT: Growth With Social Justice in India can be Achieved only Through the Cooperative Movement: A Resume of the XII Inter University National Debate on Cooperation.

Committee for Co-operative Training (National Co-operative Union of India), 34-South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, 1972, pages 39, non-priced.

The programme of Essay and Debating Competitions on Cooperation organised by the Committee for Co-operative Training, as a community, has been increasingly becoming popular. The debating competitions are organised at two levels:

- 1. At the University level through the Inter-College debating competitions, and
- 2. at the National level, through the Inter-University debating competitions.

This publication deals with the Inter-University National Debating Competition held at Ranchi University, Ranchi, on February 11-12, 1972 on the subject of "Growth with Social Justice in India can be Achieved only Through Co-operative Movement".

GUJARAT (CO-OPERATIVE DEPARTMENT):

Annual Administration Report 1969-70.
Co-operative Department, Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Gujarat State, Ahmedabad (Gujarat), 1973, pages 47, non-priced.

HAJELA, T.N.:

Principles, Problems & Practice of Co-operation. Shiva Lal Agarwala & Company, Educational Publishers, Agra-3, U.P., 1973, pages 569, price Indian Rs. 16.00

This book has been written mainly for the Graduate, and Post Graduate students of Indian Universities and Co-operative Training Colleges. It contains the objective analysis of the problems faced by the cooperative movement all over the world and gives a brief account of diversified development of the movement after the Second World War.

The book has been divided into three parts. Part-I, deals with the principles and problems of co-operation, Part-II, contains an

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

account of the development of co-operative movement in foreign lands and Part-III, is devoted to the practice of co-operation in India. The last part is divided into seven small sub-divisions covering almost all the facts of the co-operative movement in the country.

INDIA (AGRICULTURE, MINISTRY OF):

Report 1972-73 (Department of Co-operation).
Department of Co-operation, Ministry of Agriculture, Government of India, Krishi Bhavan, New Delhi-110001, 1973, pages 131.

Deals with the achievements of the Co-operative Movement in India during the Co-operative Year 1972-73.

- -- : Conference of the State Ministers of Cooperation at New Delhi, 24th & 25th January, 1973: Proceedings.

 Department of Cooperation, Ministry of Agriculture, Government of India, Krishi Bhavan, New Delhi-110001, 1973, pages 80 (mimeo.), non-priced.
- -- : Expert Committee on the National Cooperative Development Corporation: Report. Department of Cooperation, Ministry of Agriculture, Government of India, Krishi Bhavan, New Delhi-110001, 1973, pages 226, non-priced.

The Public Accounts Committee, in their 106th Report presented in April, 1970, observed that they "have reasons to doubt whether the existence of an official organisation like the National Cooperative Development Corporation in the Cooperative Sphere, besides the Department of Cooperation is at all necessary", and suggested to the Government to remit the foregoing consideration for detailed expert study and come to a decision on the necessity for the continuance of the National Cooperative Development Corporation.

In pursuance of the above recommendation of the Public Accounts Committee, the Government of India, in the Ministry of Agriculture (Department of Cooperation) constituted an Expert Committee under the Chairmanship of Mr. B. Venkatappiah, Member Planning Commission, Government of India.

The report has been divided into the following chapters with the summary of conclusions and the recommendations:

i-Introductory, ii-Historical background, iii-ussessment of performance, iv-Scope, objects, and functions, v-Financial

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

arrangements, vi-Future set-up, vii-Routing of Central Assistance for State Plan Schemes through the N.C.D.C. (National Cooperative Development Corporation), viii-Legislative Measures, and ix-Conclusion.

INDIA (AGRICULTURE, MINISTRY OF):

Report of the Warking Group on Cooperative (Fifth Five Year Plan). National Co-operative Union of India, 72 Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003, 1973, pages 172.

- . A working group on cooperation of Fifth Five Year Plan was constituted by the Government of India in 1972. The terms of reference of this group were:
 - i. To make a critical review of the quantitative and qualitative progress made by the Cooperative in various fields and the position likely to be reached by 1973-74,
 - ii. To make a critical review of the various 4th Plan schemes and programmes and to consider their continuance, modification or discontinuance,
 - iii. To identify the difficulties and problems faced and to consider the legislative, administrative, institutional and other measures necessary for the removal of bottlenecks and acceleration of the tempo of progress in the coming years,
 - iv. To formulate strategy and targets of the Cooperative Movement in various fields and to formulate schemes and programmes considered necessary for the achievement of these targets with due regard to the national objects of self-reliance, removal of regional imbalances generation of more employment and improvement in the economic and social condition of the weaker sections of the society. The long term perspectives for the period 1980-81 as given in the Fourth Plan document may be kept in view.

As per its terms of reference the working group suggested the policy and programme for cooperative should be followed during 5th Five Year Plan of India.

INDIA (FACD & C, MINISTRY OF):

Report of the Committee on Cooperation.

Department of Community Development and Cooperation, Ministry of Food, Agriculture, Community Development & Cooperation, Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi-110001, 1972 (reprint), pages 78, price Indian Rs. 3.25

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

It is the 1972's reprint of the Report of the Committee on Cooperation, constituted by the Government of India in 1964 with the following terms and references:

- a. To lay down standards and criteria by which the genuineness of cooperative societies of various types may be judged and to suggest measures for weeding out non-genuine societies and preventing their registration.
- b. To review the existing cooperative laws, rules and practices with a view to locating the loopholes which enable vested interests to entrench themselves in cooperative institutions and recommend measures legislative as well as administrative for the elimination and prevention of such vested interests.
- c. To examine the factors inhibiting self-reliance and self-regulation in the cooperative movement and to suggest appropriate remedies.

INDIA (RESERVE BANK OF):

Handbook of Concepts and Definitions of Terms Used in the Compilation of Statistical Statements Relating to the Co-operative Movement in India.

Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India, Central Office, Garment House, P.B. No. 16575, Bembay-400018, 1973, pages 70, non-priced.

It explains various concepts and definitions of terms used in the proforma tables prescribed for collection of statistical data for the Reserve Bank of India publication on co-operation, namely, "Statistical Statements Relating to the Co-operative Movement in India, Part-I, and Part-II", from the reporting authorities.

-- : Statistical Statements Relating to the Co-operative Movement in India 1970-71, Part-II: Non-Credit Societies.

Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India, Central Office, Garment House, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli Naka Worli, Bombay-400018, 1973, pages 278, price Indian Rs. 20.00

The publication deals with the statistical data relating to the financial position as on 30 June, 1971 together with data concerning the operations during the year 1970-71 of various types of cooperative non-credit societies, both in the agricultural and non-agricultural sectors, viz., marketing, processing, milk supply, farming, irrigation, fisheries, handloom weavers, sugar factories, other industrial societies, spinning mills, consumer stores, housing societies, etc.

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

KERALA (CO-OPERATIVE DEPARTMENT):

Administration Report for the Year 1969-70.
Agriculture (Co-operative) Department, Government of Kerala,
Trivandrum, Kerala, 1972, pages 158.

NCUI: Cooperative Policy Makers' Conference - Background Papers.
National Co-operative Union of India, 72 Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003,
1973, pages 226.

NCUI: Resolutions of Cooperative Policy Makers' Conference.
National Cooperative Union of India, 72 Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003,
1973, pages 15 (mimeo).

NCUI: Cooperative Movement in India - Some Facts.
National Co-operative Union of India, 72 Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003, 1973, pages 16, non-priced.

Provides statistical information on various sectors of the Co-operative Movement of India.

NCUI: Agenda & Background Papers: All India Conference of Executive and Cooperative Education Officers of State Cooperative Unions, New Delhi, 1973 (March 22-23).

National Co-operative Union of India, 72-Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003, 1973, pages 45 (mimeo.).

PONDICHERRY (COOPERATIVE DEPARTMENT):

Annual Administration Report for 1969-70. Co-operative Department, Government of Pondicherry Union Territory, Pondicherry, 1972, pages 45 (mimeo).

This is the sixteenth Annual Administration Report of the Co-cperative Department on the working of Co-cperative Societies in the Union Territory of Pondicherry for the Co-cperative Year 1969-70.

INDIA (contd.)

Language : National

CHHATARPUR DISTRICT COOPERATIVE UNION LIMITED:

Smarika Varsh 1972-73 (HINDI).

District Co-operative Union Limited, Chhatarpur, M.P., 1973, pages 104.

It is the special issue of the co-operative society on the occasion of the 25th Anniversary of the Independence Day of India.

INDORE ZILA SAHAKARI SANGH MARTYADIT:

Saptam Varshik - Prativedan (Varsh 1971-72) (HINDI). Indore Zila Sahakari Sangh Mariyadit, 21 Maharani Road, Indore-2, M.P., 1972, pages 14.

Deals with the working of Co-operative Movement in Indore District in Madhya Pradesh a State of India during 1971-72.

MADHYA PRADESH STATE CO-OPERATIVE UNION LIMITED:

Smarika (HINDI).

Madhya Pradesh State Co-operative Union Limited, 361, Napier Town, Jabalpur, M.P., 1973, pages 118.

It is a special issue, published by the Madhya Pradesh State Co-operative Union Limited, Jabalpur, on the occasion of Jubbily Celebration Year.

PANDEY, Prabhakar:

Bilaspur Zila: Ek Parichaya: Swadhinta Divas (Rajat Jayantee Smarika) (HINDI).

Zila Sahkari Sangh Mariyadit, Bilspur, Madhya Pradesh State, 1972, pages 158, price Indian Rs. 5/-.

Diseusses the working of Op-operative Movement in Bilaspur District of Madhya Pradesh State of India.

SEHOR ZILA SAHAKARI SANGH:

Sahakari Smarika: Rajat Jayanti Varsh 1973 (HINDI). Sehor Zila Sahakari Sangh, Etwara Road, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, 1973.

Deals with the working of Co-cperative Movement in Sehor District of Madhya Pradesh State of India.

INDIA (contd.)

Language : National

TEWARI, Ramgopal:

Swatantrata, Rajat-Jayanti Varsh: Bilaspur Zila Sahakari Sangh Mariyadit - Upalabdhiyan aur Samasyayen (HINDI). Zila Sahakari Sangh Mariyadit, Bilaspur, M.P., 1973, pages 20, non-priced.

Deals with the working of Co-operative Movement in Bilaspur District of Madhya Pradesh State of India.

IRAN

.Language : National

GUEEFAT, Issac:

La Cooperation Devant le Science Economique (Translated in FARSI from).

Ministry of Cooperation and Rural Affairs, Central Cooperative Organisation, 981 Old Shemiran (Kourosh Kabir) Road, Teheran,

FLANGAN, Desmond:

pages 78.

1869-1969: A Centenary Story of the Cooperative Union of Great Britain and Ireland, Volume I, and II (Translated into FARSI from ENGLISH).

Ministry of Cooperation and Rural Affairs, Central Cooperative Organisation, 981 013 Shemiran (Kourosh Kabir) Road, Teheran

Organisation, 981 Old Shemiran (Kourosh Kabir) Road, Teheran, pages 75, and 76.

JAPAN

Language : National

ORII, Sei:

Co-operative Movement in the World (JAPANESE).

Kyodo Syuppan, Tokyo, 1972, price Japanese \(\pi\) 900.

SRI LANKA

Language : National

SRI LANKA (CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF):

Co-operative Movement and Divisional Development Councils. (SINHALA).

Department of Co-operative Development, Extension & Education Division, Government of Sri Lanka, 455 Galle Road, Colombo-3, 1973, pages 64, non-priced.

It is a collection of circulars issued by the Commissioner for Co-operative Development and the Registrar of Co-operative Societies, and Director Regional Development.

THAILAND

Language : National

MACHIMA, Pradit:

Co-operative Articles and Social Economics Development (THAI). Thai Bab-rien, 398/4-6, Mahachai Road, Bangkok, 1973, pages 125, price Thailand Baht 20.

The publication deals the following aspect of the Co-operative Movement of Thailand:

- 1. Rural Development by way of cooperative method.
- 2. Progress of Credit Cooperatives, and
- 3. The role of agriculture in Economic Development.

SAIYANANDA, Thep:

Thailand and Co-operatives (THAI).
Thai Bab-rien, 398/4-6, Mahachai Road, Bangkok, 1973, pages 88, price Thailand Baht 5.

The publication deals in brief the history, structure, and problems of the co-operative movement of Thailand.

THAILAND (COOPERATIVE PROMOTION DEPARTMENT):

Cooperative Principles, and Cooperative Promotion in Thailand (THAI) Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 47 (mimeo).

Deals with the Cooperative Principles, the Reigistrar's power and duty, Source of cooperative funds, and the present trends of cooperative promotion.

THAILAND (contd.)

Language : National

THAILAND (COOPERATIVE PROMOTION DEPARTMENT): Co-operative Movement in Thailand (THAI).

Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperative, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 84 (mimeo).

Deals with the following points:

Cooperatives and Land Allotment for Agriculture,

2.

The Relation of Cooperatives and Agricultural Promotion, and The projects and Programs of Cooperative Training and Education 3. & Development of Agricultural and non-agricultural Cooperatives.

The Registrar's Report on Cooperative Day, 1973 (THAI). Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Covernment of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 9 (mimeo).

> Co-operative Movement in Thailand from the past to the present and programs for future development.

CO-OPERATIVE HOUSING

B'ANGLADESH

Language : English

BANGLADESH JATIYA SAMABAYA UNION:

National Workshop on Co-operative Housing in Bangladesh.
Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union, 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area,
Dacca-2, 1972, pages 46.

This report consist of main recommendations made by the National Workshop on "Co-operative Housing" held at Dacca, during 29th November - 5th December 1972 with active cooperation and collaboration of the International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, New Delhi.

Status of Cooperative and Rural Housing Programmes in Bangladesh Today, by Lionel Gunawardana, and D.D. Naik (Cooperative Series 9). International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014 (India), 1973, pages 37, price Indian Rs. 3.00

It is an attempt to discuss the existing system of housing in Bangladesh. It also suggests ways and means of improving housing situation in Bangladesh through co-operative housing system.

Report on the National Workshop on Law Cost and Cooperative Housing in Bangladesh, November 29 to December 5, 1972.

International Cooperative Housing Development Association (ICHDA), Suite 1007 1012-14th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20005, U.S.A. mimeo.

The purpose of this report is to briefly outline the highlights of the Cooperative and Low Cost Housing Workshop which was sponsored by the International Co-operative Alliance (ICA), the International Co-operative Housing Development Association (ICHDA), and the Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (The National Cooperative Union of Bangladesh - BJSU) in collaboration with the government. It also contains information on post-workshop discussions with government officials concerning possible areas of a continuing and broadened ICHDA involvement in Bangladesh. The main points discussed in the workshop are as follows:

i-Introduction, ii-Background, iii-Conference Paper, iv-Workshop Methodology, v-Participants, vi-Summary of Workshop Recommendations: (a-Housing problems in rural areas, b-Urban housing, c-Education, Training and Research, and d-Legal and Legislative aspects), vii-Program of the Ministry of Relief and Rehabilitation, viii-4d Hoc Coordinating Committee, and ix-Summary and follow-up.

CO-OPERATIVE HOUSING (contd.)

INDIA

Language : English

ICHDA: Report on the Conference on Cooperative Housing in India,
December 11-13, 1972.
International Cooperative Housing Development Association (ICHDA),
Suite 1007 1012-14th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20005, U.S.A.,
mimec.

The purpose of this report is to briefly outline the highlights of this Conference which was sponsored jointly by the National Co-operative Union of India (NCUI), and the National Co-operative Housing Foundation (NCHF) at the International Co-operative Alliance (ICA) Regional Office in New Delhi.

ICHDA collaborated in the Conference through the representatives from two of its member organizations. The Co-operative Union of India has distributed the Proceedings of the Conference which include a number of the principal presentations as well as the Conference Resolutions. The main points discussed in the Conference are as follows:

- 1. Introduction,
- 2. Background,
- 3. Scope of the Workshop.
- 4. Highlights of the Workshop Recommendations:
 a-General Guidelines, b-Organizational Structure and Financial
 Pattern, c-Emphasis on Lower Income Group, and d-Financial
 Aspect.
- 5. Some Observation on Cooperative Housing in India, and
- 6. Comments, Conclusions and Recommendations:
 a-Government Response, b-Conference Follow-up, c-Study on
 Mortgage Insurance, d-Legal Aspects, and c-ICHDA/INDIA Office.

MAHAJAN, M.P.:

The Methodology of Two-Tier System of Cooperative Housing Finance in Maharashtra.

The Author, (Dr. M.P. Mahajen), Assistant Manager, Maharashtra Co-operative Housing Finance Society Limited, Temple Bar Building, 1st Floor, 70 Dr. V.B. Gandhi Marg, Fort, Bombay-400 001, 1973, (unpublished thesis), pages 850+4215 (Typed).

The thesis submitted in 1972 to the University of Poona for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Commerce, Maharashtra College of Commerce and Director of Master of Business Administration Programme conducted by the Poona University.

The thesis pertains to the exhaustive study conducted on the Methodology of Two-Tier System of Cooperative Housing Finance in Maharashtra, i.e. the State level apex co-operative housing finance

O-OPERATIVE HOUSING (contd.)

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

society and the primary cooperative housing societies. The treatment of the subject was as indicated in the enclosure.

The thesis is devided in four parts with their headings given below:

- 1. Co-operative Housing and the Two-Tier Structure:
 i-The Housing Situation, ii-Cooperative Housing, iii-The TwoTier Structure, iv-The Maharashtra Pattern, and v-General Rules
 for Raising Finance.
- 2. Finance for the Apex:
 i-Share Capital as a source of finance, ii-Life Insurance
 Corporation Loans as a source of finance, iii-The repayment
 of Life Insurance Corporation Loans, iv-Profits as a source of
 finance, and v-Finance from other sources.
- 3. Finance to the Primaries:
 i-Conditions for Loans, ii-Broad Procedure for the grant of
 loans, iii-The providional sanction of loan, iv-The Certification
 of title, v-The final sanction of laan, vi-The valuations,
 vii-The disbursement of loans, viii-The repayment of loans, and
 ix-The Need or interim finance.
- 4. Foreign Systems Case-Study, Surveys Suggestions and Conclusions: i-Salient features of some housing systems in selected countries, ii-Case-Study of a borrowing society, iii-The beneficiaries of Cooperative Housing Finance, iv-The survey of the borrowing societies, v-A suggested pattern of housing finance, and vi-Summary and conclusions.

CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT, BANKING AND FINANCE

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

Report of the Regional Seminar on Co-operative Credit with special Reference to Japan, held at Tokyo (Japan), April 10-28, 1973. International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43-Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, India, 1973, pages 43 (mimeo.), price Indian Rs. 2.50

The Regional Seminar on Co-operative Credit with Special Reference to Japan was held in Tokyo (Japan) at IDACA from 10th to 28th April, 1973. The Seminar was preceded by study visits for five days to agricultural cooperatives in the Republic of Korea. The present document comprises conclusions and recommendations adopted by the seminar, observations on study visits made by three participants at the seminar and summaries of background papers on co-operative credit in their countries presented by participants.

INDIA

Language : English

AGRO-ECONOMIC RESEARCH CENTRE:

Some Aspects of Long Term Occepative Agricultural Finance: (A Study of Two Areas in Gujarat).
Agro-Economic Research Centre, Sardar Patel University, Vallabh Vidyanagar, Gujarat, 1971, pages 176, price Indian Rs. 15.00

Until recently the Land Development Ennks were the principal agencies for provision of long term finance for agriculture. However, the effectiveness of the LDBs has not been uniform in different parts of the country. Also, little is known about the pattern of utilisation of the loans taken from the LDBs. The present study is an attempt to throw light on the above aspects as far as they relate to Gujarat.

The record of successful working of the Gujarat State Co-operative Land Development Bank is well known in the country. The present study brings cut the factors which have contributed to its success. The study also examines in detail the leaning procedure and policies of the Bank and the extent to which different sections of farming community have received the benefits of loans. The study pleads for simplification of the loaning procedures and rationalisation of the criteria for determining the credit limits of individual borrowers.

The study further shows that happily, the extent of diversion of loans from the purposes for which they were taken is small. All the same, the study underscores the need to check the diversion that results from the peculiar arrangements made for supply of farm equipments to farmers.

INDIA

Language : English '

- ANDHRA PRADESH COOPERATIVE CENTRAL LAND MORTGAGE BANK LIMITED:
 Ninth Annual Report 30th June 1970.
 The Andhra Pradesh Cooperative Central Land Mortgage Bank Limited,
 Sahakar Bhavan, Barkatpura, Hyderabad-27, 1970, pages 84,
 non-priced.
- -- : Tenth Annual Report, 1971.

 The Andhra Pradesh Cooperative Central Land Mortgage Bank Limited, Sahakar Bhava, Barkatpura, Hyderabad-27, 1971, pages 63+statements, non-priced.
- -- : 11th Annual Report 1972.
 The Andhra Pradesh Cooperative Central Land Mortgage Bank Limited,
 Sahakar Bhavan, Barkatpur, Hyderabad-500027, A.P., 1972, pages 76,
 non-priced,
- A Study of Long-Term Agricultural Credit in Mysore State (With Special Reference to Repaying Capacity), Part-II.

 Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Cooperative Management,
 R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-16, 1973, pages 91 (mimeo),
 non-priced.

Deals with the organizational patterns and loaning procedures adopted were indicated. It also highlights many of the recommendations which have been implemented by the Bank.

INDIA (RESERVE BANK OF):
Interim Report of t

Interim Report of the Study Team on Co-operative Agricultural Credit Institutions in Maharashtra. Agricultural Credit Department, Researce Bank of India, Central Office, Garment House, P.B. Bo. 16575, Bombay-400018, 1973, pages 103, non-priced.

Deals with the problems of overdues of co-operative agricultural credit institutions in Maharashtra State in India. Stabilization arrangements in co-operatives in times of successive natural calamity-rehabilitation programme for non-wilful defaulters-ensuring of credit through co-operatives for the special agricultural programmes are also dealt with.

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

KORANNE, P.G.:

Simplification of Loaning Procedures of Land Development Banks in Mysore State.

Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Cooperative Management, R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-16, 1973, non-priced.

It is a report on simplification of loaning procedures in the Land Development Banks of Mysore State of India.

LUCKNOW (COOPERATIVE TRAINING COLLEGE):

Report of the Seminar for the Leaders of Short Term Credit of Uttar Pradesh: Seminar (Lucknow - December 21-23, 1972) (HINDI also).

Cooperative Training College, Mausam Bagh, Sitapur Road, Lucknow Lucknow-226006, U.P., 1972, pages 128

MADHYA PRADESH STATE COOPERATIVE BANK LIMITED:

11th Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 1967-68.
The Madhya Pradesh State Co-operative Bank Limited, "Sahakari Sadan", Wright Town, Jabalpur, M.P., 1968, pages 21, non-priced.

MYSORE STATE COOPERATIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED:

41st Annual Report 1969-70.

The Mysore State Cooperative Land Development Bank Limited, Bangalore, Mysore, 1970, pages 55, non-priced.

- --: 42nd Annual Report 1970-71.
 The Mysore State Co-operative Land Development Bank Limited,
 Bangalore, Mysore, 1971, pages 60+statements, non-priced.
- ---: 43rd Annual Report 1971-72.

 The Mysore State Cooperative Land Development Bank Limited,
 Bangalore-18, Mysore, 1972, pages 66+statements, non-priced.

Language : National

DESAI, H.R. (Translated by):

Krishi Dhiran Marga Darshika (GUJARATI). Gujarat State Co-operative Union, "SLHYOG", Behind Jyoti Sangh, Relief Road, Ahmedabad-1, Gujarat, 1973, pages 160, price Rs. 2.50

A Gujarati version of the publication, viz., "A Monual on Production Oriented System of Lending for Agriculture", published by the Reserve Bank of India.

INDIA (contd.)

Language : National

INDORE PREMIAR CO-OPERATIVE BANK:

56th Varshik Prativedan, Varsh 1971-72 (HINDI).
The Indore Premiar Co-operative Bank Limited, 29 Maharani Road, Indore, M.P., 1972, pages 32, non-priced.

Annual Report of Indore Co-operative Bank for the Year 1971-72.

SANGLI ZILA MADHYAVARTI SAHAKARI BANK LIMITED:

43va Ahval, Taleband, Dinank 30 June 1970 (MARATHI). Sangli Zila Madhyavarti Sahakari Bank Limited, Sangli, Maharashtra State, pages 28, non-priced.

43rd Annual Report of Sangli District Co-operative Bank for the year 1970.

---: 44va Ahval Taleband, 30 June 1971 (MARATHI AND ENGLISH).
Sangli Zila Madhyavarti Sahakari Bank Limited, Sangli, Muharashtra
State, pages 30, non-priced.

44th Annual Report of Sangli District Cooperative Bank for the year 1971.

---: 45va Ahval, Taleband, Dinank 30 June 1972 (MARATHI and ENGLISH).
Sangli Zila Madhyavarti Sahakari Bank Limited, Sangli, Maharashtra
State, pages 50, non-priced.

45th Annual Report of Sangli District Cooperative Bank for the year of 1972.

IRAN

Language : English

IRAN (BANK RAHNI):

Summary of the 33rd Directors' Report and Balance Sheet for the Year Ended 30th ESFAND, 1350 (20th March, 1972). Bank Rahni Iran (Mortgage Bank of Iran), Teberan, 1972, pages 31, non-priced.

IRAN (contd.)

Language : National

GOTTINGEN, VANDENHOCK, and RUPRECHT:

Kreditgenossenschaften in Osterreich (Translated into FARSI).

Minsitry of Cooperation & Rural Affairs, Central Cooperative

Organisation, 981 Old Shemiran (Kourosh Kabir) Road, Teheran,
pages 80.

KLEISS, Herbert:
Raiffeisen in Osterreich (Translated into FARSI from ENGLISH).
Ministry of Cooperation & Rural Affairs, Central Cooperative
Organisation, 981 Old Shemiran (Kourosh Kabir) Road, Teherar,
pages 81.

JAPAN

Language : English

CENTRAL COOPERATIVE BANK FOR AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY:
Statistics of Agricultural Finance in Japan 1972.
Economic Research Department, Central Co-operative Bank for Agriculture and Forestry, 1-9-3, Yuraku-cho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1972, pages 74.

NORINCHUKIN BANK:

Present Condition of Cooperative Finance for Agriculture, Forestry, and Fishery in Japan 1973.

Economic Research Department, NORINCHUKIN BANK (The Central C Cooperative Bank for Agriculture, and Forestry), Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 56.

MALAYSIA

Language: English

COOPERATIVE CENTRAL BANK LIMITED:

Annual Report 1972.

Co-operative Central Bank Limited, 29 Leboh Ambang, Kuala Lumpur, 1973, pages 24, non-priced.

PHILIPPINES

Language : English

AGRICULTURAL CREDIT ADMINISTRATION:

Annual Report 1970-71: Butteressing the Nation's Base.
Agricultural Credit Administration, P.O. Box 310, 2544 Taft Avenue,
Manila, 1972, pages 43+Annexes, non-priced.

AGRICULTURAL CREDIT AND COOPERATIVES INSTITUTE:

Annual Report 1971-1972. University of the Philippines, Agricultural Credit and Cooperatives Institute, College Laguna, Philippines, 1972, pages 81, non-priced.

SINGAPORE

Language: English

PORT OF SINGAPORE AUTHORITY EMPLOYEE'S CO-OPERATIVE THRIFT & LOAN SOCIETY: 47th Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 1971.

The Post of Singapore Authority Employees' Co-operative Thrift & Loan Society Limited, Singapore, 1972, pages 48, non-priced.

THAILAND

Language : National

KOONSAP, Teerawit:

Lecture on Thrift & Credit Cooperatives (THAI).

Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 46 (mimeo.).

Principles and Method of Credit Cooperatives, Organization and Operation.

---: Agricultural Credit (THAI).
Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of
Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973,
pages 118 (mimeo.).

Credit aspects and meanings, Classification of agricultural credit, Credit Principles.

THAILAND (contd.)

Language : National

THAILAND (COOPERATIVE AUDITING, DEPARTMENT OF):
Report on Financial Statistics of Credit Cooperatives in the East of Thailand, A.D. 1973. (THAI).
Accounts Division, Department of Co-operative Auditing, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 58.

Analysis on financial statement of Credit Cooperatives in the East of Thailand, including the financial statistics for the year ended December 31, 1972.

---: Report on Financial Statistics of Credit Cooperatives in the South of Thailand, A.D. 1973 (THAI).

Accounts Division, Department of Co-operative Auditing, Ministry of Agriculture, and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 118.

CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE

JAPAN

Language: English

ZENKYOREN:

Summary of Business 1972. ZENKYOREN (National Mutual Insurance Federation of Agricultural Co-operatives), 7-9, Hirakawa-cho, 2-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo-102, 1972, pages 29, non-priced.

Language : National

ZENKYOREN:

ZENKYOREN'S ATSUKI Business Office (JAPANESE).
ZENEKYOREN (National Mutual Insurance Federation of Agricultural Co-operatives), 7-9, Hirakawa-cho, 2-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, non-priced.

- -- : Guide of ZENKYOREN (JAPANESE).

 ZENKYOREN (National Mutual Insurance Federation of Agricultural Co-operatives), 7-9, Hirakawa-cho, 2-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, non-priced.
- ---: Statistics of Agricultural Cooperative Insurance, No. 3 (JAPANESE).

 ZENKYOREN (National Mutual Insurance Federation of Agricultural Co-operatives), 7-9, Hirakawa-cho, 2-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, non-priced.

INDUSTRIAL CO-OPERATIVES

INDIA

Language : English

NCUI: Proceedings of the Seminar on Planning for the Development of Industrial Co-operatives.

National Co-operative Union of India, 72 Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003, 1973, pages 139, non-priced.

RAO, Akurathi Venkateswara:

Handloom Industry in India - A Study. National Co-operative Union of India, 72 Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003, 1973, pages 140.

Deals with history of the development of handloom industry in India.

AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language: English

AXINN, George, and THORAT, Sudhakar:

Modernizing World Agriculture - A Comparative Study of Agricultural Extension Education Systems.

Praeger Publishers, 111 Fourth Avenue, New York, N.Y. 10003, U.S.A., 1972, pages 216, price Indian Rs. 125.00

It is a comparative study of agricultural extension education system provided in various countries of East and West. The agencies responsible for extension work, viz., Government, co-operative and other local bodies are dealt in detail. In the conclusion the authors have given their valuable suggestions for the improvement of the extension system with special reference to under-developed countries. The countries covered under this study are; India, U.K. Japan, Israel, Denmark, Taiwan, U.S.A., Brazil, U.A.R., Australia, Pakistan and Nigeria.

USA (ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON OVERSEAS COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT):
Farmer Cooperatives in Developing Countries.
The Advisory Committee on Overseas Cooperative Development,
1730 K Street, N.W., Suite 1200 Washington, D.C.20005, U.S.A.
1971, pages 32, non-priced.

This study has evaluated, in historical perspective, the contributions that can be made to agricultural development through the use of farmer cooperatives. An effort has also been made to identify those factors — political, social, economic, and institutional — that together make it possible for cooperatives to flourish and achieve their full development potential.

This study of "Farmer Co-operatives in Developing Countries" does three things:

- i. defines the role of farmer cooperative in development, especially in giving small farmers institutional access to the benefits of a modernizing agriculture,
- ii. explains the strengths and weaknesses of farmer cooperatives in developing countries, and
- iii. suggests improvements in cooperative development methods which can make the farmer cooperatives a valuable institution of agricultural development in the more than 100 countries of the developing world.

AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

INDIA

Language : English

CHOUDHARY, K. M. and Others :

An Assessment of Cooperative Farming Societies in Gujarat and Rajasthan (A Few Case Studies).

Agro-Economic Research Centre (For Gujarat & Rajasthan), Sardar Patel University, Vallabh Vidyanagar, (Gujarat), 1972, pages 377, price Indian Rs. 20.00

The present study embodies findings of a survey on the efficiency of cooperative farming organisations in Gujarat and Rajasthan, for this study, detailed case studies of twelve cooperative farming societies, six each in the two States, were made.

The study reveals certain interesting features of the farm cooperatives. The study shows, for example, that a number of societies, which are organised at the behest of well-meaning, forward-looking, non-official leaders starve of guidance and direction when they leave the institutions. Further, the members replicate within the societies the social and economic hierarchy of the wider socio-economic groups to which they belong. The role of farm cooperatives as "levellers" is also not much in evidence. The study emphasises the role played by the societies in capital formation with the help of surplus labour. The study underlines the need for bifurcating the technical and administrative functions on these farms, which, by implication, would necessitate insistence on large and viable organisations.

JAPAN Language : English

CENTRAL UNION OF AGRICULTURAL COOPERATIVES:

Development of Agricultural Cooperatives And Government Assistance - The Japanese Case.

The Central Union of Agricultural Cooperatives, Tokyo, Japan, 1973, pages 14.

CENTRAL UNION OF AGRICULTURAL COOPERATIVES:

Agriculture and Agricultural Cooperative Movement in Japan. International Department, Central Union of Agricultural Cooperatives, 3-8-1, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 54.

IDACA; Agricultural Cooperative Movement in Japan.

The Institute for the Development of Agricultural Cooperation in Asia,
24-9-6 Chome, Funabashi-cho, Setagaya-ku, Tokyo, pages 94.

AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

<u>JiPhN</u> (contd.) Language: English

ZENKOKU SHINRINKUMIAL RENGOKAI:

Forest Owners' Cooperative Associations in Japan.
National Federation of Forest Owners' Cooperative Associations
(ZENKOKU SHINRINKUMIAI RENGOKAI), Coop. Building, 1-12 Uchikanda,
1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 6.

ZEN-NOH:

Invitation to ZEN-NOH-1973. ZEN-NOH (National Federation of Agricultural Co-operative Associations), Nohikyo Bluding, 8-3, Ohte-Machi, 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 28.

 $\underline{\mathtt{JAPAN}}$

Language: National

BLOHM, Georg:

General Theories on Agricultural Management (Allgemeine Landwirtsch-Aftliche Betriebslehre) (JAPANESE) Edition, Origional in German Language).

IE-NO-HIKARI, Association, No. 11, Funagawara-Cho, Ichigaya, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 432, price Japanese ₹ 2000.

Comparative studies of productive conditions and management in Agriculture in Japan.

THAILAND

Language: National

MARUKATUT, Narong:

Research on Deposit of Ban Lard Agricultural Cooperatives Ltd. (THAI).

Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973 pages 13 (mimeo).

DAIRY CO-OPERATIVES

INDIA

Language : National

MULANI, J.M.:

Dairy Industries in Gujarat: The Best Essay (GUJARATI). Gujarat State Co-operative Union, "SAHYOG", Behind Jyoti Sangh, Relief Road, Ahmedabad-1, Gujarat, 1973, pages 35, non-priced.

An essay competition on the subject was sponsored by the Sayajirao Dimond Jubilee Trust, Baroda and this essay was selected as the best one and won the prize of Rs. 500/-. It narrates almost all the details about the history and progress of the milk co-operatives in Gujarat State. It is the concise reference book on the subject.

FISHERIES CO-OPERATIVES

INDIA

Language : English

CENTRAL INSTITUTE OF FISHERIES EDUCATION:

SOUVENIR: Ist March 1973.

Central Institute of Fisheries Education, (Ministry of Agriculture, Government of India, New Delhi), Bombay, 1973.

It is the Souvenir of the Central Institute of Fisheries Education Government of India, Ministry of Agriculture, New Delhi), Bombay issued on the occasion of inauguration of the FAO/SIDA Course on "Management of Fishermen's Co-operatives", March 1973.

SERVICE CO-OPERATIVES

INDIA

Language : English

TCAS: Symbol of Service and Progress.

The Tudiyalur Co-operative Agricultural Service Limited,
Tudiyalur, P.O., Coimbatore, South-India, 1972, pages 16,
non-priced.

Bocklet highlights the successful working of the Tudiyalur Co-operative Agricultural Services Limited in Tamil Nadu State of India.

Language : National

SEVA SAHAKARI SANSTHA MARIYADIT:

Varshik Prativedan: Varsh 1971-72 (HINDI). Seva Sahakari Sanstha Mariyadit, Tahisil Sanvar, Dakachya District Indore, Madhya Pradesh, 1973, pages 13, non-priced.

Deals with the working of Dakachya, District Indore service co-operative society of Madhya Pradesh State of India.

THAILAND

Language : National

THAILAND (CO-OPERATIVE AUDING, DEPARTMENT OF):
Report of Financial Statistics of Service Cooperatives,
A. D. 1973 (THAI).
Accounts Division, Department of Co-operative Auditing,
Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 86 (mimeo.).

Abalysis on financial statement of Service Co-operatives, including the financial statistics for the year ended December 31, 1972.

CO-OPERATIVE PROCESSING

INDIA

Language : English

NCDG:

Wheat Processing by Co-operatives.
National Co-operative Development Corporation,
C-56, South Extension, Part-II, New Delhi-110 049, 1973,
pages 23, non-priced.

It contains model schemes for a wheat roller flour mill of daily 50 tonnes capacity a small semi-mechanized bakery to provide the co-operatives with necessary guidelines.

CO-OPERATIVE TRADE AND MARKETING

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

Report on the Survey of Co-operative Agricultural Marketing P Projects in South-East Asia, Part-III: Thailand, and Malaysia (for private circulation only).

International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, India, 1973, pages 98 (mimeo.).

ICA: Report of the Regional Seminar on "Co-operative Marketing of Foodgrains".

International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Coolony, New Delhi-110014, India, 1973, pages 20+5+6 (mimeo.), price Indian Rs. 2.50

The Regional Seminar on "Co-operative Marketing of Foodgrains" was jointly held in Manila from 1st to 16th December 1969, by the International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia and the Central Co-operative Exchange, Inc., the Philippines. Active support to the seminar was given by the Agricultural Credit Administration, Agricultural Credit and Cooperatives Institute, and the Grains Marketing Cooperative of the Philippines. The seminar was attended by 23 participants from Australia, India, Indonesia, the Republic of Korea, Malaysia, the Philippines, Sri Lanka, and Thailand. Observers from the Food and Agriculture Organisation of the United Nations, and the Afro-Asian Rural Reconstruction Organisation also attended the seminar.

The present Report consists of discussions carried out in various groups of the seminar and discussions at the plenary sessions on the group reports. It does not include lecture texts or summaries thereof. A copy of the seminar programme and a list of the participants are appended herete.

AUSTRALIA

Language : English

COOPERATIVE BULK HANDLING LIMITED:

Annual Report and Accounts 31st October, 1972. Co-operative Bulk Handling Limited, 22 Delhi Street, West Perth, W.A., 1973.

CO-OPERATIVE TRADE AND MARKETING (contd.)

INDIA

Language : English

BHULESHKAR, Ashok V.:

Bargaining Co-operatives With Special Reference to the Quick Frozen Food Industry in Great Britain: (Sir Horace Curzon Plunkett Memorial Book).

Jawaharlal Nehru Memorial Institute of Development Studies, Rasika Ashram, Nanabhai L. Road, Chinchavali Malad (West), Bombay-400 064, 1973, pages 194, price Indian Rs. 36.00, or UK £3.00, or US \$12.00

The problem of farmers' weak bargaining power is both complex and controversial. Over many years there has been strong emphasis on the importance of strengthening the farmers' bargaining power and the use of a co-operative bargaining approach that will benefit them by improving their terms of trade and consequently their income position.

In recent years increasingly rapid vertical integration in agriculture has aroused doubts in some sectors regarding the loos of producer's central over production activities. In view of this the role of bargaining co-operatives assumes prime importance in increasing the farmers collective stength. Therefore, the study is primarily concerned with the question whether the bargaining co-operatives are sufficiently linked together to achieve bargaing power with the processors.

The study also cutlines a model structure of a "bargaining co-operative" which can be related to co-operatives in other agricultural commodities. As stated in the Foreward, the author's study while being valuable in itself is of particular significance and help to the farmers' Co-operative Societies, because it contains lessons borne out of experience. It is, therefore, of "BARGAINING CO-OPERATIVES" on a national level . . . If the organisational and structural characteristics mentioned in this study are emulated by similar marketing co-operatives, it will enhance considerably the strength of the co-operatives and the economic progress of the individual farmer members.

GUJARAT STATE CO-OPERATIVE MARKETING SOCIETY LIMITED: VIKAS YATRA (GUJARATI also).

Gujarat State Co-operative Marketing Society Limited, Sahakar Bhavan, Relief Road, Ahmedabad-1, Gujarat, 1973, pages 43, non-priced.

Deals with the successful working of the Gujarat State Co-operative Marketing Society Limited, during its 13 years existance. This publication is meant to provide ample information about the Society's activities of those connected with agriculture, and to induce them to avail of various schemes of the Society.

CO-OPERATIVE TRADE AND MARKETING (contd.).

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

NCDC: Annual Report 1971-72.

National Co-operative Development Corporation, C-56 South
Extension, Part-II, New Delhi-110049, 1973, pages 86, non-priced.

The main functions of the NCDC (National Co-operative Development Corporation) Act, 1962 are to plan and promote programmes for production processing marketing storage, export and import of the agricultural produce and other notified commodities through cooperative societies.

The Report contains a view of the Financial Assistance released by the NCDC during 1971-72 under its various sponsoring schemes.

NCUI: Conference on the Role of Agricultural Cooperative Marketing Societies in Procurement and Distribution of Foodgrains - Background Papers.

National Co-operative Union of India, 72 Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003, 1973, pages 122.

Language : National

ICA/NCUI: Sahakari Vipanan Vichar Goshthi, on 30th May 1973, at Sahakari Sheetgrah, Rao, Indore District (HINDI).

ICA/NCUI (International Co-operative Alliance/National Co-operative Union of India), Co-operative Education Field Project,

19 Rase Course Road, Indore-452003, M.P., 1973, non-priced.

It is a brief report of a study circle on Co-operative Marketing in Indore district, M.P.

MADHYA PRADESH RAJYA SAHAKARI VIPHNAN SANGH MARIYADIT:
Ekadasham Varshik Prativedan: Varsh 1966-67 (HINDI).
Madhya Pradesh Rajya Sahakari Viphnan Sangh Mariyadit, No. 7,
Malik Market, Hamidiya Rad, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh.

This 11th report deals with the Madhya Pradesh State Co-operative Marketing Society, during the period of 1966-67.

---: Dwadasham Varshik Prativedan: Varsh 1967-68 (HINDI).

Madhya Pradesh Rajya Sahakari Viphnan Sangh Mariyadit, Maheswari
Building, Jahagirabad, Bhopal, Post Box No. 10, 1971.

It is the 12th Annual Report of the M.P. State Cooperative Marketing Society for the period 1967-68.

CO-OPERATIVE TRADE AND MARKETING (contd.)

INDIA (contd.)

Language : National

MADHYA PRADESH RAJYA SAHAKARI VIPHNAN SANGH MARIYADIT:

Terahvan Varshik Prativedan: Varsh 1968-69 (HINDI).

Madhya Pradesh Rajya Sahakari Viphnan Sangh Mariyadit,

Maheswari Building, Jahagirabad, Post Box No. 10, Bhopal, M.P.,
1971,

It is 13th Annual Report of the M.P. State Co-operative Marketing Federation for the period of 1968-69.

JAPAN

Language : English

UNI COOPJ AP AN:

Invitation to UNICOOPJAPAN - Co-operative Trading Company - Exporters & Importers.
UNICOOPJAPAN, Nhokyo Building, 8-3, Ohtemachi, 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo-100, 1973.

Deals with the working of UNICOOPJAPAN.

THAILAND

Language : National

KOONSAP, Teerawit:

Purchasing and Marketing Activities of Cooperatives (THAI). Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 52 (mimeo.).

Deals wit the principles of purchasing, supply equipments and other essential factors for agriculture cooperatives, such as selling, grading, finance, storage, etc.

CONSUMERS CO-OPERATIVES

İNDIA

Language : English

RAO, S.B.:

Patrons of Super Bazars. Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Co-operative Management, R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-16, 1973, pages 45 (mimeo), non-priced.

It is a comparative study of the customers in two Super Bazars in Bombay city in 1969, and 1973.

IRAN

Language : National

HOUGH, John A .:

Cooperative Retailing 1914-1945 (Translated into FARSI from ENGLISH).

Ministry of Cooperation & Rural Affairs, Central Cooperative Organisation, 981 Old Shemiran (Kourosh Kabir) Road, Teheran, pages 82.

RADETZKI, Marian:

Economics of Consumer Cooperatives (Translated into FARSI from ENGLISH).

Ministry of Cooperation & Rural Affairs, Central Cooperative Organisation, 891 Old Shemiran (Kourosh Kabir) Road, Teheran, pages 83.

It is a Farsi translation of ICA New Delhi publication.

JAPAN

Language : English

NI SSEI KYO:

Co-op Introduction to NISSEIKYO (J.C.C.U.). NISSEIKYO (Japanese Consumers' Co-operative Union), Seikyo-Kaikan, 1-13-4, chome, Sendagaya, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 20.

NISSEIKYO is the apex organisation of Japan's consumer movement. This report deals with the history, organization, management, present working and future policy of the organization.

CONSUMERS CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

SRI LANKA

Language : National

SRI LANKA (CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT):

Consumer Development (SINHALA). Extension & Education Division, Department of Co-operative Development, Government of Sri Lanka, 455 Galle Road, Colombo-3, 1973, pages 76, non-priced.

It is the report of the National Seminar on "Consumer Development", held on 27-6-1972 to 8-7-1972.

THAILAND

Language : National

MARUKATUT, Narong:

Research on Problems of Cooperative Stores (THAI).

Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 40 (mimeo.)

Subject areas covered in the study are: i-Economic problems, ii-Management problems, iii-Members problems, and iv-Ideas for improvement.

CO-OPERATIVE ELECTRIFICATION

INDIA

Language : English

VMNICM: A Study of the Mula-Pravara Electricity Cooperative.

Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Cooperative Movement,

R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-16, 1973, non-priced.

Discusses the strength and weaknesses of Cooperatives and Public Sector undertakings in the Supply of Electricity. Improvements in the management suggested.

CO-OPERATIVE LEGISLATION

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the International Co-operative Traiding Organisation (PTE) Limited. Incorporated on the day of 197 . . . : The Companies Act, Cap. 185 Republic of Singapore. International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-110 014, India (1973), pages 29 (mimeo.).

BANGLADESH

Language : English

BANGLADESH (L.G., R.D. & CO-OPERATIVES, MINISTRY OF):
The Bengal Co-operative Societies Rules, 1942 (Amended up to 31st December, 1972).
R.D. & Co-operative Division, Ministry of L.G., R.D. & Co-operatives, Government of the People's Republic of Bangladesh, Dacca, 1973, pages 109, price Taka 3.00

INDIA

Language : English

DACCA CO-OPERATIVE SPINNING MILLS LIMITED:

Bye-Laws.

The Daccan Co-operative Spinning Mills Limited, Static n Road, P. O. Ichalkaranji, Taluka: Shirol, District: Kolhapur, Maharashtra, Pages 17 (Mimeo).

INDIA (AGRICULTURE, MINISTRY OF):

Expert Committee on Multi-State Cooperative Societies Legislation: Report.

Department of Cooperation, Ministry of Agriculture, Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi-110001, 1973, pages 221, non-priced.

The Government of India has in the new context of cooperative development in the country, recognised the need for a comprehensive central legislation and in pursuance of this need, appointed an expert Committee under the chairmanship of Mr. Udaybhansinhji.

INDIA (contd.)

Language: English

The terms of reference of the Committee were:

- 1. To recommend the scope of comprehensive central legislation and the basis on which the same is to be framed,
- 2. To consider the desirability of categorisation of multi-unit cooperative societies on the following or any other suitable basis:
 - i. National Cooperative Federation,
 - ii. Societies having membership residing in more than one state, and
 - iii. Other multi-unit cooperative societies having objects extending beyond one state.
- 3. To consider and recommend the extent of powers and responsibilities of the central authorities and the extent to which the same can be delegated to the state authorities in respect of different categories.

The report has been divided into the following six chapters discussing various aspects of cooperative legislated law in India:

- 1. Introductory,
- 2. Historical Background and Critique of the Present Legislation,
- 3. Approach to Future Legislation,
- 4. Suggested Scope of the proposed Legislation:
 i-Preliminary, ii-Central Registrar and Registration of
 Societies, iii-Members and their rights and liabilities,
 iv-Management of Cooperatives, v-Privileges of Multi-State
 Cooperative Societies, vi-Properties and funds of Cooperative
 Societies, vii-Audit, Inquiry, Inspection and Surcharge,
 viii-Settlement of Disputes, ix-Winding up and cancellation
 of Registration of Cooperative Societies, x-Execution of awards,
 decrees, orders and decisions, xi-Appeals, xii-Societies which
 become multi-state societies consequent on re-organisation of
 states, xiii-Miscellaneous, and xiv-Rules making power.
- 5. Administration of the Legislation, and
- 6. Concluding Observations.

MADHYA PRADESH STATE COOPERATIVE MARKETING FEDERATION LIMITED: Bye-Laws.

The Madhya Pradesh State Co-operative Marketing Federation Limited, Bhopal, M.P., pages 34.

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

MATHUR, M.P.:

The M.P. Cooperative Societies Act 1960 & M.P. Cooperative Societies Rules 1962 (With Latest Amendments).
M.P. State Cooperative Union Limited, 361 Napier Town, Jabalpur, M.P., 1972, pages 184, price Indian Rs. 8.00

It is a commentary on the M.P. Cooperative Societies Act, 1960 is amended up to February 1971. The Scheme of the book is divided into ll chapters which deal in the matters of Registration, member rights and duties, institution duties special powers, etc., management of the institution powers and revision, and miscellaneous, etc.

MYSORE STATE CO-OPERATIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED:

Bye-Laws (Amended up to March 12, 1971). The Mysore State Cooperative Land Development Bank Limited, Bangalore, Mysore, 1971, pages 24, non-priced.

Language : National

INDORE PREMIAR CO-OPERATIVE BANK:

Byelaws (HINDI).

The Indore Premiar Co-operative Bank Limited, 29 Maharani Road, Indore, M.P., pages 28.

PATEL, C.P., and THAKAR, U.L.:

Sahakari Mandaliono Kayado, 1961 Ane Niyamo, 1965 (With Notes & Comments) (GUJARATI).
Gujarat State Co-operative Union, "SAHYOG", Behind Jyoti Sangh, Relief Road, Ahmedabad-1, Gujarat, 1972 (Fourth Edition), pages 441, price Indian Rs. 7.00

It is the fourth edition of the Gujarat 30-operative Societies Act, 1961 with Rules, 1965 with Notes & Explanations broughtout by the Gujarat State Co-operative Union.

SANGLI DISTRICT CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANK LIMITED:

Bye-Laws (ENGLISH ALSO). (MARATHI). The Sangli District Central Co-operative Bank Limited, Taluka Miraj, District Sangli, Maharashtra State, pages 36.

INDIA (contd.)

Language : National

INDORE ZILA SAHAKARI SANGH MARIYADIT:

Indore Zila Sahakari Sangh Mariyadit, Indore ke Prastavit Naveen Upniyam (HINDI).

Indore Zila Sahakari Sangh Mariyadit, Indore, M.P., pages 13 (mimeo.).

RAJASTHAN RAJYA SAHAKARI KRYA-VIKRYA SANGH LIMITED:

Upniyam (Amended up to 11-8-1969) (HINDI):

Rajasthan Rajya Sahakari Krya-Vikraya Sangh Limited, Bhawani Singh Marg, Jaipur-4, Rajasthan, pages 23.

Amendment in Rajasthan Cooperative Marketing Societies Act.

IRAN

Language : National

CCO: Amendments to the Co-operative Law of Iran (FARSI).
Ministry of Cooperation & Rural Affairs, Central Cooperative
Organisation, 981 Old Shemiran (Kourosh Kabir) Road, Teheran,
pages 77.

CCO: The Cooperative Societies Law and Amendments (FARSI).
Ministry of Cooperation & Rural Affairs, Central Cooperative
Organisation, 981 Old Shemiran (Kourosh Kabir) Road, Teheran,
pages 79.

JAPAN

Language : English

IDACA: Laborers' Credit Co-operative Law.
National Association of Labour Banks, Tokyo, pages 48, non-priced.

MALAYSIA

Language : English

MALAYSIA (NATIONAL AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT, MINISTRY OF):
Co-operative Societies Ordinance & Rules (Incorporating the Latest
Amendments and Modification Orders).
Abdul Ghafar Bin Baba, Minister of National and Rural Development,

Federation of Malaya, Kuala Lumpur, 1972, pages 56.

PHILIPPINES

Language : English

CENTRAL COOPERATIVE EXCHANGE:

A Co-operative Service Feature: Strengthening the Cooperative Movement.

Central Co-operative Exchange, Inc. (CCE), 113-115, Arle Building, Aurora Boulevard Extension, Corner J, Ruiz Street, Sanjuan, Rizal, pages 13.

SINGAPORE

Language : English

PORT OF SINGAPORE AUTHORITY EMPLOYEES' CO-OPERATIVE THRIFT AND LOAN SOCIETY:
By-Laws Registered 9th October, 1925 (Revised By-Laws Registered
26th April, 1972).
The Port of Singapore Authority Employees' Co-operative Thrift and
Loan Society Limited, Port of Singapore Authority, Tanjong Pagar,
Singapore, 1972, pages 18.

THAILAND

Language : English

THAILAND (COOPERATION PROMOTION DEPARTMENT):
Translation, The Co-operative Societies act, 3.E. 2511.
Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 29.

THAILAND (contd.)

Language : English

THAILAND (COOPERATIVE PROMOTION DEPARTMENT):

Translation (Model) By-Laws of Agricultural Cooperatives.

Technical Division, Cooperative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 56 (mimeo).

CO-OPERATIVE EDUCATION

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

AXINN, George, and THORAT, Sudhakar:

Modernizing World Agriculture - A Comparative Study of Agricultural Extension Education Systems.

Praeger Publishers, 111 Fourth Avenue, New York, N.Y. 10003, U.S.A., 1972, pages 216, price Indian Rs. 125.00

It is a comparative study of agricultural extension education system provided in various countries of East and West. The agencies responsible for extension work, viz., Government cooperative and other local bodies are dealt in detail. In the conclusion the authors have given their valuable suggestions for the improvement of the system with a special reference to under-developed countries. The countries covered under study are: India, U.K., Japan, Israel, Denmark, Taiwan, U.S.A., Brazil, U.A.R., Australia, Pakistan, and Nigeria.

ICA: Research Work and Scientific Education in the Cooperative Field in Asia, by P.E. Weeraman.

International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, India, 1972, pages 10 (mimeo.), non-priced.

B.NGL.DESH

Language : English

BANGLADESH JATIYA SAMABAYA UNION:

An Integrated Programme of Member-Education Involving Increasing Food Production and Family Planning.
Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Co-operative Union), Samabaya Sadan, Motijheel Commercial Area, Dacca-2, 1972, pages 9+appendix (mimeo.).

---: Report of the Mass Education Evaluation Team on Pilot Project.
Published by Faizul Rahman Khan on behalf of "Mass Education Scheme",
Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union, Samabaya Sadan, 1st Floor,
9/D, Motijheel, Commercial Area, Dacca-2, pages 15+appendix.

Bangladesh Coperative Union launched a mass education programme for the period of 1972-80. This report evaluates the success and failure of the pilot project started under the above scheme.

CO-OPERATIVE EDUCATION (contd.)

INDIA

Language: English

- CCT: 10th Annual Report 1971-72.

 Committee for Cooperative Training (National Co-operative Union of India), 34 South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, 1973, pages 181.
- CCT: Cooperative Training Programmes: April-June 1973.

 Committee for Cooperative Training (National Co-operative Union of India), 34 South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, 1973, pages 9 (pamphlet).
- CCT: Cooperative Training Programmes 1973-74.

 Committee for Co-operative Training (National Co-operative Union of India), 34 South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, 1973, pages 66 (mimeo.).
- NCUI: Agenda Notes & Background Papers: Orientation Course-Cum-Second Conference of the Instructors Working Under I.A.D.P. Scheme, N New Delhi, 1973, (March 5-13).

 National Co-operative Union of India, 72 Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003, 1973, pages 43 (mimeo.).
- NCUI: Visual Aids Illustration.
 National Co-operative Union of India, 72 Jorbagh, New Delhi-110003, 1973, pages 40.

A booklet to help the readers to enable them to understand about various phenomena with the help of simple illustrations.

LUCKNOW (COOPERATIVE TRAINING COLLEGE):

Course Report: Orientation Course on Cooperative Law and Procedures for Field Officers of Commercial Banks Financing Agriculture Through Cooperatives (26-2-1973 to 10-3-1973). Co-operative Training College, Mausam Bagh, Sitapur Road, Lucknow-226 006, U.P., 1973, pages 44 (mimeo).

VMNICM: Hand-Book.

Vaikunth Mehta National Institute fof Co-operative Management, R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-16, 1973, pages 64, non-priced.

This Hand-Book attempts to describe the history, objectives, activities and the future prospectives of the Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Co-operative Management, Poona (Maharashtra).

CO-OPERATIVE EDUCATION (contd.)

IRAN

Language : English

SHAHAB COOPERATIVE INSTITUTE:

Shahab Co-op Institute: 30th Anniv. (1942-1972). (ALSO FARSI). Shahab Co-operative Institute, Tehran, Iran, P.O.B 1328, or Shemiran - Elahiyeh Fereshteh, Str. 35, 1972, pages 5 (English), and 31 (Farsi)

JAPAN

Language : English

OTCA: Information on Group Training Course in Agricultural Cooperatives - 1973.

Internal Operations Department, Overseas Technical Co-operation Agency (OTCA), Government of Japan, Honmura-cho, Ichigaya, Shinjuku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 5.

PHILIPPINES

Language : English

AGRICULTURAL CREDIT AND COOPERATIVES INSTITUTE:

The ACCI Regional Training Center for Agricultural Credit and Cooperatives in Asia and the Far East: Information Bulletin No. 2, July 1970.

University of the Philippines, Agricultural Credit and Cooperatives Institute, College Laguna, Philippines, 1970, pages 30.

MULTIPURPOSE CO-OPERATIVES

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

Report of the Regional Seminar on "Multipurpose Co-operative Societies with Special Reference to Japan", held at Tokyo (Japan), May 16 - June 6, 1972.

International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, India, 1972, pages 33 (mimeo.), price Indian Rs. 2.50

The Regional Seminar on "Multipurpose Co-operative Societies with Special Reference to Japan", was held by the International Co-operative Alliance Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, New Delhi (India) in collaboration with the Central Union of Agricultural Cooperatives in Japan, and the Institute for the Development of Agricultural Cooperatives in Asia (IDACA), Tokyo, Japan, from 16th May to 6th June, 1972, at IDACA in Tokyo.

The countries which participated in the Seminar were Bangladesh, India, Indonesia, Iran, Ropublic of Korea, Malaysia, Philippines, Singapore, Sri Lanka (Ceylon), and Thailand.

The objectives of the Seminar were as follows:

- i. To discuss the concept of a multi-purpose cooperative society,
- ii. To discuss methods of integration of credit, supply, marketing, etc., through multi-purpose co-operatives,
- iii. To discuss the management questions of multi-purpose Co-operatives, and
- iv. To study the working of the multi-purpose cooperatives in Japan.

JAP AN

Language: English

ICA: Case Studies on Minakuchi Agricultural Cooperative Society, and Dainakanoko Agricultural Cooperative Society, prepared by Lionel Gunawardana.

International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, India, 1973, pages 30+16 (mimeo).

This is the case study of two multipurpose agricultural cooperative societies of Japan, namely: Minakuchi Agricultural Cooperative Society, and Dainakanoko Agricultural Cooperative Society. The

CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

JAPAN (contd.)

Language : English

points discussed in the studies of these societies are as follows:

- 1. Minakuchi Agricultural Co-operative Society:
 - Introduction,
 - b. Establishment of the Society,
 - c. Area and farm families,
 - d. Agricultural production,
 - Decrease in rice production,
 - f. Membership,
 - g. Qualification for regular membership,
 - h. Block level meetings,
 - i. Representative meetings,
 - j. Officials,
 - k. Employees,
 - 1. Internal organisational structure,
 - m. Facilities and services,
 - n. Business activities,
 - o. Better living activities,

 - p. Other services,q. Communication with employees and their training,
 - Communication with the members. r.
 - s. Balance Sheet, and
 - t. Profit & Loss Account.
- 2. Dainakanoko Agricultural Cooperative Society:
 - a. Introduction,
 - b. Membership,

 - c. General Meetings,d. Board of Directors,
 - e. Facilities and services,
 - f. Business activities,
 - g. Communication Between society and employees.
 - h. Communication between society and members.

 - i. Balance Sheet, andj. Profit and Loss Account.

CO-OPERATIVE BOOK-KEEPING AND MANAGEMENT

INDIA

Language: English

CCT: A Resume of the XIII Inter-University National Debate on Co-operation.

Committee for Co-operative Training (National Co-operative Union of India), 34 South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, 1973, pages 90, non-priced.

In continuation of its programme to spread Co-operative Ideas among the youths of Indian Universities, the CCT organized Inter-University National Debating Competion at Aligarh Muslim University, Aligarh, U.P. on February 24 & 25, 1973 on the subject "Professionalisation of Co-operative Management is Vital for Operational Efficiency of Co-operatives".

This publication includes the speeches made by the Co-operative Leaders and the participants on the occasion.

TAIMNI, K.K.:

Professionalisation of Management in Co-operatives. Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Co-operative Management, R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-16, 1973, non-priced.

Discusses the importance of professionals in the management of co-operative sector.

---: A Study of the Management Problem of the Mula Pravara Co-operative. Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Co-operative Management, R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-16, 1973, non-priced.

Discusses the strength and weaknesses of the co-operatives and public sector undertakings. Improvements in the management suggested.

Language : National

VYAS, Ramnath "Parikar":

Bharat Mai Sahakari Prabandh (HINDI). Sarojarun Prakashan, Kota, Rajasthan, 1973, pages 182, price Indian Ra. 12.00

It discusses the theory and practice of co-operative management as followed in India. It discusses the principles, nethods, organizational aspects of the co-operative management. Various valuable suggestions for the improvement of the co-operative management in India are also given. Since there is a dearth of

CO-OPERATIVE BOOK-KEEPING AND MANAGEMENT (contd.)

INDIA (centd.)

Language : National

good literature on co-operative management in Hindi language, this attempt of the author deserves appriciation. The book will be realy useful for the students of co-operatives in Hindi speeking areas of India.

THAILAND

Language : National

KOONSAP, Teerawit:

Cooperative Business Administration (THAI).
Technical Division, Co-operative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Government of Thailand, Bangkok, 1973, pages 36 (mimeo.).

Discusses about planning, organizing, personnel administration, and administration objects.

CO-OPERATIVE AUDIT

SRI LANKA

Language : English

SRI LANKA (COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF):

Accounting System for Co-operative Unions.

Department of Co-operative Development, Government of Sri Lanka,
Colombo, pages 53.

BDP/RP/25111974.

ANNOTATED BIBLIOGRAPHY

Of Literature on Cooperative Movement in S-E Asia

SUPPLEMENT SECOND HALF-YEARLY: DECEMBER 1973





INTERNATIONAL COOPERATIVE ALLIANCE

REGIONAL OFFICE & EDUCATION CENTRE FOR SOUTH-EAST ASIA POST BOX 3312, 43 FRIENDS' COLONY, NEW DELHI 110-014. INDIA

SECOND HALF-YEARLY: DECEMBER 1973.

ANNOTATED BIBLIOGRAPHY OF LITERATURE ON COOPERATIVE MOVEMENT IN SOUTH-EAST ASIA

INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ALLIANCE

REGIONAL OFFICE & EDUCATION CENTRE FOR SOUTH-EAST ASIA
Post Box No. 3312, 43-Friends Colony,

NEW DELHI - 110 014. (I N D I A)

International Co-operative Alliance Alliance Coopérative Internationale Internationaler Genossenschaftsbund Международный Кооперативный Альинс



Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends' Colony, Post Box Number 3312, New Delhi-110-014 India. telephone 63-1541, telegrams "Interallia" New Delhi

Your ref.

Our ref. BIB/S(II)73/RP.

12th August 1974.

Dear Co-operator,

We are enclosing herewith the Second Half-Yearly Supplement - December 1973 of the Annotated Bibliography of Literature on Co-operative Movement in South-East Asia. The Supplement includes publications issued by the Co-operative Movement in South-East Asian Region and also the literature published by individual authors, private publishers and other national and international organizations on the Co-operative Movement of the Region since July 1973. The publications issued before July 1973 for which information was received by us late for inclusion in the First Half-Yearly Supplement - June 1973 are also included in this Supplement.

Kindly acknowledge the receipt and let us know how useful you find this Supplement of the Annotated Bibliography.

With co-operative greetings,

Yours sincerely,

B.D. Pandey,

Encl:

ANNOTATED BIBLIOGRAPHY OF LITERATURE ON COOPERATIVE MOVEMENT IN SOUTH-EAST ASIA

HALF-YEARLY SUPPLEMENT

COMPILED BY

B. D. PANDEY, : :

LIBRARIAN, I.C.A., NEW DELHI.

ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION :

Indian Rs. 7.50 or US \$1.00

We also publish the DOCUMENTATION BULLETIN FOR SOUTH-EAST ASIA; is divided into two parts, the first part consists of the annotated list of selected articles on co-operation and allied subjects, and the second part consists of a classified list of books added to the ICA Library.

· FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, PLEASE CONTACT

The Publications Section, INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ALLIANCE, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, Post Box No. 3312, 43 Friends Colony (East), NEW DELHI - 110 014.

INDIA

CONTENTS

	SUBJECTS			PAGE NO	•
1.	Co-operative Theory and Pri	nciples		1	
2.	International Co-operatives	;	•••	2	
3.	State and Co-operatives	-	-	3	
4.	Co-operative Movement	-	•••	4 - 11	
5.	Co-operative Housing	-	-	12 - 13	
6.	Co-operative Credit, Bankin	ng and Fir	ance	14 - 20	
7.	Agricultural Co-operatives	-	-	21 - 26	
8.	Fertilizer Co-operatives			27	
9.	Fisheries Co-operatives	_	-	28	
10.	Service Co-operatives	•••	-	29	
11.	Co-operative Processing	-		30	
12.	Co-operative Trade and Mark	ceting	~-	31 - 35	
13.	Consumers' Co-operatives	_	-	36 - 37	
14.	Youth and Co-operatives	-	-	38	
15.	Co-operative Aid & Technica	l Assi s ta	.nce	39	
16.	Co-operative Legislation	-		40 - 45	
17.	Co-operative Education	-	-	46 - 47	
18.	Multipurpose Co-operatives	-	•••	48	
19.	Co-operative Book-Keeping a	nd Manage	ment	49 - 50	•

CO-OPERATIVE THEORY AND PRINCIPLES

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

ICA: The Co-operative Principles, by P.E. Weeraman (Co-operative Series-10).
International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43-Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, India, 1973, pages 40, price Indian Rs. 3.00

This monograph is an attempt to explain the Principles of Co-operation, in the light of the views expressed by the ICA Commission on Co-operative Principles (1963-66), and the other authorities quoted herein as well as author's own experience of over thirty years of co-operative development work.

INDIA

Language : English

INDIA (AGRICULTURE, MINISTRY OF):
Cooperation - A Way of Life.
Department of Co-operation, Ministry of Agriculture,
Government of India, Krishi Bhavan, New Delhi-110 001,
1972, pages 82.

It is a compilation of select sayings by eminent co-operators and leaders of India.

INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATION

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATION

Language: English

ICA: The ICA in South-East Asia, by P.E. Weeraman.
International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office &
Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43-Friends Colony,
New Delhi-110 014, India, 1973, pages 51, non-priced.

Booklet highlightes aims, objective, administrative setup, financial sources, major activities undertaken by the International Co-operative Alliance in the Region of South-East Asia and present working of the Office.

STATE AND CO-OPERATIVES

JAPAN

Language : English

CENTRAL UNION OF AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES:

Development of Agricultural Co-operatives and Government Assistance - The Japanese Case. The Central Union of Agricultural Co-operatives (ZEN-CHU), 8-3, 1-Chome, Ohtemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pageś 14.

The assistance provided by the Government of Japan to its agricultural co-operatives, may be classified into four catagories: i-Legal assistance, ii-Assistance through agricultural policies, iii-Fiscal and financial assistance, iv-Assistance through education.

In this publication an attempt has been to elaborate the above four types of assistance.

The publication has been divided into six sections. Each section discusses various phases of assistance given. Section One (- 1900) regarding the Before Enactment of Co-operative Society Law, Section Two (1900 - 1930) regarding Start of Co-operatives as Legal Entities and Establishment of Co-operative Federations under Growing Capitalist Economy, Section Three (1930 - 1936) regarding Agricultural Panic and Spread of Co-operative Movement, Section Four (1937 - 1945) regarding Wartime Economic Regime and Step Toward Government Agent, Section Five (1946 - 1959) regarding Post-war Rural Democratization, Economic Recovery, and Rise of Agricultural Co-operatives and Their Subsequent Succumbing to Management Difficulties, and Section Six (1960 -) regarding Agricultural Trade Liberalization, Structural Reform Policy, and Response of Agricultural Co-operatives.

CO-OPERATIVE MOVEMENT

AUSTRALIA

Language : English

QUEENSLAND (REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVE AND OTHER SOCIETIES):
Report of the Registrar of Co-operative and Other
Societies for the Year Ended 30th June, 1973.
Published by the Authority, S.G. Reid, Government
Printer, Government of Queensland, Brishbane, 1973,
pages 3.

AUSTRALIA (CO-OPERATIVE FEDERATION OF):

Australian Co-operatives National Convention: Report. The Co-operative Federation of Australia, 569 Wellington Street, Perth, Western Australia 6000, 1973, pages 93.

It is the Report of Australian Co-operatives National Convention, held at the Canberra, A.C.T. Australia on 24th, 25th and 26th August 1973. The objects of the Convention were set as:

- 1. To analyse the formation and administration of Government policies concerning Co-operatives, and
- 2. To assess opportunities for improved Co-operative activity within the Australian economic and social system.

115 delegates, together with Senior Government representatives from a wide variety of Production and Marketing Agricultural Co-operatives, from Credit Unions, Building Societies, Ministry of Co-operatives of N.S.W., and Co-operative Registries considered papers relating to many aspects of Co-operative activity.

The papers presented are included in this Report as are the recommendations of the delegates at the conclusion of the Convention, are as follows:

- 1. Australian Co-operative Statistics,
- 2. Conference Programme,
- 3. Co-operative Represented and Delegates.
- 4. Introductory Remarks, by M.J. Lane, President,
- Keynote Address by the Deputy Prime Minister and Minister for Defence, the Hon. L.H. Barnard, to officially open the Australian Co-operatives National Convention, Canberra, 24th August, 1973,

AUSTRALIA (contd.) *

Language : English

- 6. Other Governments' Policies Towards Co-operatives, by Miss M. Digby,
- 7. "Role of Agricultural Co-operatives in the Market Place", by K.W. Edwards,
- 8. The Role of Co-operative Law, by David Harton,
- 9. "International Co-operative Services for Australian Co-operatives", by Irwin Hunter,
- 10. Australian Co-operatives National Convention Special Features of Co-operative Financing, by R.M. Graham,
- 11. The Taxation of Co-operatives Past, Present and Future, by E.F. Mannix,
- 12. Co-operatives and the Urban Community, by R.B. Maybury,
- 13. "Rationalization of Co-operative Enterprise", by B.A. Campbell,
- 14. Rationalisation of Co-operative Enterprise, by J.J. McGuire,
- 15. After Dinner Address to Australian Co-operatives National Convention, by F. Crean, and
- 16. Recommendations from the Final Plenary Session of the Australian Co-operatives National Convention, Canberra, 26th August 1973.

BANGLADESH

Language : English

BANGLADESH (REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES):
Annual Departmental Report for the Year 1969-70.
The Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Agricultural Department, Co-operative Directorate, Government of Bangladesh, Dacca, 1972, pages 102.

CO-OPERATIVE MOVEMENT

INDIA

Language : English

ASSAM (ECONOMICS AND STATISTICS, DEPARTMENT OF):
Economic Survey - Assam 1972.
Department of Economics and Statistics, Government of Assam, Shillong, 1973, pages 92,

There is a chapter (Chapter No. 7, pp. 33-42) on "Co-operation", which gives in brief the working of the co-operatives in the State.

DELHI STATE CO-OPERATIVE UNION:
Souvenir 1973 (HINDI ALSO).

The Delhi State Co-operative Union Limited, 31 Netaji Subhash Marg, Delhillo 006, 1973, pages 66.

Highlights the success achieved and problems faced by the co-operatives in Union Territory of Delhi.

GUJARAT (CO-OPERATIVE DEPARTMENT):

Annual Administration Report 1969-70. Co-operative Department, Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Gujarat State, Ahmedabad, pages 47, price Indian Rs. 1.10

GUJARAT STATE CO-OPERATIVE UNION:

G.S.C.U. - What it is, What it Does. The Gujarat State Co-operative Union, "Sahyog", Behind Jyoti Sangh, Relief Road, Ahmedabad, 1973, pages 24, nonpriced.

This brochure is to acquaint the Co-operators in brief with the objectives, functions and the aims, activities of the Gujarat State Co-operative Union, which has been set up in Ahmedabad for the promotion and development of the co-operative movement in Gujarat State of India.

An the end, statement No. I, gives the progressive statistics for the member education programme of the Gujarat State Co-operative Union and Statement No. II, gives the progressive statistics for the training programme at Junior Co-operative Training Centres in Gujarat State of India.

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

- INDIA (AGRICULTURE, MINISTRY OF):
 Conference of Registrars of Co-operative Societies, at
 New Delhi, 29th & 30th September, 1972: Proceedings.
 Department of Co-operation, Ministry of Agriculture,
 Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi-110 001,
 1973, pages 68.
- - : Conference of the State Ministers of Co-operation, at New Delhi, 24th & 25th January 1973: Proceedings. Department of Co-operation, Ministry of Agriculture, Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi-110 001, 1973, pages 94.
- INDIA (RESERVE BANK OF):
 Statistical Statements Relating to the Co-operative
 Movement in India, 1971-72; Part-I: Credit Societies.
 Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India,
 Central Office, Garment House, P.O. Box 16575,
 Bombay-400 018, 1973, pages 184, price Indian Rs. 13.50

This publication presents statistical details relating to co-operative banks and the credit societies at State, Central and Primary levels. The general tables show the state-wise particulars such as number, membership, assets, liabilities, etc., as at the end of 30-6-1972 as well as their operations during 1971-72. This also contains abstract table giving in summary form all the statistical data.

KERALA (CO-OPERATIVE DEPARTMENT):

Administration Report for the Year 1970-71 - Co-operative
Department.

Agriculture (Co-op. Estt.) Department, Government of Kerala,
Trivandrum, Kerala, 1973, pages 154.

MAMORIA, C.B., and SAKSENA, R.D.:
Co-operation in India.
Kitab Mahal, Allahabad, U.P., 1973 (Fourth revised and enlarged Edition), pages 631, price Indian Rs. 20.00

It is the fourth edition of the book, which was first published in 1957. The present edition is throughly revised and upto date. It provides critical apprication

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

of the changing pattern of diverse aspects of Indian Co-operative Movement. The study is well supported by latest available statistical tables. The book has been mainly written for the graduate and post graduate students of Indian Universities and those preparing for various compititive examinations. It has been divided into the following 23 chapters dealing with Indian Co-operative Movement:

1-Agricultural Background, 2-Rural Credit, 3-Rural Indebtedness, 4-Theory of Co-operation, 5-History and Growth of Co-operative Movement, 6-Co-operative Credit Structure, 7-Multi-purpose and large Scale Societies, 8-Service Co-operatives, 9-Supervisory Unions and Central Financing Agencies, 10-State Co-operative Banks, 11-Non-Agricultural Credit Co-operation (Urban Credit), 12-Land Development Banks (Long Term Credit), 13-Agricultural Non-Credit Co-operation, 14-Co-operative Farming, 15-Processing and Co-operative Marketing, 16-Consumers' Co-operative Stores, 17-Industrial Co-operatives, 18-Co-operative Housing, 19-Evaluation and Reorganisation of the Co-operative Movement, 20-The State and the Co-operative Movement, 21-Co-operative Movement and the Reserve Bank of India, 22-Co-operation and the State Bank of India, and 23-Administration, Audit and Supervision.

- NCUI: All India Cooperative Week Programme: November 14-20, 1973. National Co-operative Union of India, 72, Jorbagh, New Delhi-110 003, 1973, pages 12 (folder), non-priced.
- ORISSA (REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES):
 Co-operative Movement in Orissa A Profile 1971-72.
 The Orissa State Co-operative Union, Bhubaneswar-3, Orissa, 1973, pages 26, non-priced.
- -: Statistics on Co-operatives in Orissa 1967-68.
 The Statistics Section, Office of the Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Orissa, Bhubneswar, Orissa, 1972, pages 192.
- ---: Statistics on Co-operatives in Orissa 1969-70.
 Statistics Section, Office of the Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Orissa, Bhubneswar, Orissa, 1973, pages 213.

INDIA (contd.)

Language: English

TNCU: The Tamilnadu Co-operative Union: What it is? What it does? The Tamilnadu Co-operative Union, TNCU Building, Near Waljah Bridge, Opp. Island Grounds, Madras-600 009, Tamil Nadu State, pages 12, non-priedd.

Language: National

ELAVIA, B.H. (Mrs.):
"Co-operation", Volume I (GUJARATI).
University Granth Nirman Board, Gujarat State, Ahmedabad,
1973 (first edition), pages 389+III (Volume I), price Indian Rs. 16.00

> The author has provided to the Gujarat University students of Arts & Commerce Faculties a standard reference book in Gujarati on the subject of "Co-operation". It is divided into three parts: Part-I, discusses about definitions of co-operation and its relationship with economic systems and forms of organisations and also regarding the role of the Indian States in the Co-operative Movement and place of co-operation in Economic Planning. Part-II, tells us the developmental phases of co-operative movement in preindependence and post-independence of India. Part-III, covers the aspects of agricultural and non-agricultural credit and functional working of various Co-operative Credit It also deals with Co-operative Marketing, Consumers' Co-operation, Co-operative Housing, Farming and Agricultural Processing Co-operatives. It has also incorporated a special chapter on the role of Reserve Bank of India, State Bank of India in the field of co-operation. The inclusion of one chapter devoted to the important programmes and achievements of Co-operative Education and Training and about the National Co-operative Union of India.

RATHOD, C.S.:
"Co-operation", Volume II (GUJARATI). University Granth Nirman Board, Gujarat State, Ahmedabad, 1973 (First Edition), pages XIV+624 (Volume II), price Indian Rs. 25/-.

> This book which provides us a reference material in Aujarati language to the students and persons interested in the subject of co-operation. This volume is fully dealt with

INDIA (contd.)

Language: National

the history and practice of co-operation in foreign countries.

Finally, the author has outlined the progress, influence and analytical review of the foreign co-operative movement, together with the bibliography on the subject.

M.P. (ASSISTANT REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES):
Silver Jubilee of Indian Independence: SOUVENIR - 1947-72
(HINDI).
Assistant Registrar, Co-operative Societies, Gwalior,
Madhya Pradesh, 1973, pages 61, non-priced.

This is the Independent Day Souvenir, deals with the progress of co-operative movement in Madhya Pradesh in general its Gwalior District in particular during 25 years of Independence (1947-72).

NCUI: Report - 1969-70 (HINDI).
The National Co-operative Union of India, 72-Jorbagh,
New Delhi-110 003, pages 96.

RAJASTHAN (REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES):
Sahkari Samitiyon Ko Sahayata Suvidhayen (HINDI).
Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Rajasthan State,
Jaipur, 1973, pages 21.

It deals about the assistance provided to the co-operative societies, by the Department of Co-operation of Rajasthan State within the State.

UTTAR PRADESH CO-OPERATIVE UNION:

Varshik Prativedan - As on 30th June 1970 (HINDI). The Uttar Pradesh Co-operative Union, 14-Vidhan Sabha Marg, Lucknow, U.P., 1973, pages 54.

Deals with the achievements, and working of U.P. Co-operative Union, as on 30th June 1970.

MALAYSIA

Language : English

SARAWAK (DIRECTORATE OF CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT):

Annual Report on Co-operative Development for the Year
Ending 31st December 1971.

Office of the Director of Co-operative Development,
Sarawak, Kuching, 1973, pages 21.

SINGAPORE

Language: English

SINGAPORE (REGISTRY OF CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES):
Annual Report of the Registry of Co-operative Societies
1972.
Registry of Co-operative Societies, Ministry of Social
Affairs, Empress Place, Singapore-6, Singapore, 1973,
pages 9.

SRI LANKA

Language: National

SRI LANKA (CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF):
Development and Statutory Circulars (SINHALA).
Department of Co-operative Development, Government of Sri Lanka, Duke Street, P.O. Box 419, Colombo-1, 1973, pages 415, non-priced.

It is a collection of Circulars issued by the Department of Co-operative Development, Government of Sri Lanka, during the period 1-7-1970 to 30-11-1972.

CO-OPERATIVE HOUSING

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language: English

ICA: Readings in Co-operative Housing.
Allied Publishers Private Limited, 13/14, Asaf Ali Road,
New Delhi-110 001, 1973, pages 161, price Indian Rs. 20.00

This book presents select papers presented by experts of international repute on Co-operative Housing at the Regional Seminar, held at Kuala Lumpur in 1970, sponsored by the International Co-operative Alliance. The papers mainly deal with serious housing shortages in rural and urban areas, growth of slums, squatter settlements and general deterioration in housing facilities. The contributions on Acute Overcrowding in Urban Areas, the Planning and Implementation of Co-operative Housing Scheme, Government Policy for Development of Housing, Cost Saving Factors in House Constructions, Architectural Services and the Housing Problems of Low and Middle Income Groups highlight the topic of Study.

The present volume is aimed at providing the government personnel and co-operators with valuable guidance on the subject. The papers appeared in the book are as follows:

- 1. Review of Housing Situation in the Region, by Sim F. Garcia,
- 2. Co-operative Housing, by P.E. Weeraman,
- 3. Types of Housing Co-operatives: Local Organizational Set-up in the Federal Republic of Germany, by Benn Heinen,
- Planning and Implementation of Housing Scheme, by N.A. Kularajah,
- Role of Co-operative Thrift and Loan Societies, Co-operative Banks and Insurance Societies in the Development of Housing Co-operatives, by G.S. Dass,
- 6. Role and Activities of Apex Organization in Promoting and Developing Co-operative Housing, by Lionel Gunawardana,
- 7. Government Policy for Development of Housing and Co-operative Housing in India: Land Allotment, Finance, Legal Framework and Services of Government Personnel, by D.D. Naik,
- 8. Cost Saving Factors in Housing Construction, by G.C. Mathur,

CO-OPERATIVE HOUSING (contd.)

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATION (contd)

Language : English

- 9. Architectural Services: Efficient and Economical Designs of Dwellings, by K.R. Jani, and
- 10. Report of the Regional Seminar on "The Development of Co-operative Housing in South-East Asia".

INDIA

Language: English

KARNATAKA STATE CO-OPERATIVE HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED:
Administration Report for the Year 1972-73.
The Karnataka State Co-operative Housing Corporation
Limited, No. 3, South Public Square Road, Basavangudi,
Bangalore-4, Karnataka State, 1973, pages 4 (mimeo.),
non-priced.

CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT, BANKING AND FINANCE

INDIA

Language : English

APTE, S.G. :

Report on Study of Viability of Primary Agricultural Credit Societies - A Bench Mark Survey (1968-69). Planning Commission, Government of India, New Delhi-110001 1973, pages 62.

This report is based on a fairly large and respresentative sample of primary agricultural credit societies. It provides frequency distributions of primary agricultural credit societies in terms of some important criteria. This has made the 'data base' of primary agricultural credit societies multi-dimensional: they so far had remained mon-dimensional.

In addition to providing fresh and original data, the report has yet another merit: it outlines the position as it existed at the beginning of the Fourth Plan. This would serve as a 'bench-mark' for assessing the progress periodically.

GUJARAT STATE CO-OPERATIVE BANK LIMITED:

Annual Report 1972-73 (GUJARATI ALSO).
The Gujarat State Co-operative Bank Limited, Sahakar Bhavan, Relief Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat, 1973, pages 41, non-priced.

It is the Annual Report and Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account 1972-73 of the Gujarat State Co-operative Bank Limited, Ahmedabad, Gujarat State.

INDIA (RESERVE BANK OF):

Developmental Role of State and Central Co-operative Banks. Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India, Central Office, Garment House, P.B. No. 16575, Bombay-400 018, 1973, pages 24, non-priced.

The brochure deals with the developmental role which has to be played by the State, and Central Co-operative Banks in relation to agricultural credit in India, with the following aspects:

i. Operational aspects, ii. Developmental, and iii. Inter-institutional aspects.

CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT, BANKING AND FINANCE (contd.)

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

INDIA (RESERVE BANK OF):

Statistical Statements Relating to the Co-operative Movement in India, 1971-72: Part - I: Credit Societies. Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India, Central Office, Garment House, P.O. Box 16575, Bombay-400 018 1973, pages 184, price Indian Rs. 13.50

This publication presents statistical details relating to co-operative banks and the credit societies at State, Central and Primary levels. The general tables show the state-wise particulars such as number, membership, assets, liabilities, etc., as at the end of 30.6.72 as well as their operations during 1971-72. This also contains abstract table giving in summary form all the statistical data.

--- Report of the Study Team on The Two-Tier Cooperative Credit Structure In Kerala.

Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India, Bombay, 1973, pages 186, non-priced.

At the request of Government of Kerala the Reserve Bank of India appointed a study team under the Chairmanship of Dr. C.D. Datey, on 7 December 1972 to examine how effectively the co-operative central banks in the state were functioning as supporting credit institutions and whether their retention in the credit structure as independent financing units was justified in the light of their performance.

Terms of Reference:
The terms of reference to the Study Team were as under:--

- i) To study the financial position and organizational arrangements in the central co-operative banks in the State.
- ii) To examine whether there is justification for continuing the intermediate level institutions of the three-tier structure of co-operative credit in the state.

CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT, BANKING AND FINANCE (Contd.)

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

- iii) To examine whether in any particular district it will be advantageous to eliminate the central co-operative bank if such a step is not considered advisable or necessary for the state as a whole and in that case suggest the steps necessary to enable the state co-operative bank to take the place of the central bank and to discharge the responsibility more effectively and efficiently than the latter.
- iv) To examine whether in any particular district while the central co-operative bank may be ready to finance societies in certain areas, the state co-operative bank may come in as a temporary measure to finance the societies directly to fill the credit gaps.
- v) To make any other recommendations which are incidental to the above terms of reference.

The report is divided into five chapters:

- I. Expert opinion on the co-operative credit structure,
- II. Working of the three-tier co-operative credit structure in the state,
- III. Implications of the two-tier credit structure,
- IV). Justification for and the performance of the central co-operative banks.and
- V). Summary of recommendations.

INDIA (RESERVE BANK OF):

Guidelines to Commercial Banks for Financing of Primary Agricultural Credit Societies - Revised Edition.
Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India, Bombay, 1973, (Revised Edition), pages 96, non-priced.

"In January 1970, the Reserve Bank of India published a brochure entitled Guidelines to Commercial Banks for financing Primary Agricultural Credit Societies when the scheme of financing of primary agricultural credit societies by commercial banks was initially introduced in the states of Andhra Fradesh, Haryana, Madhya Pradesh, Mysore and Uttar Pradesh. The Guidelines were based generally on the Manual on Short-term and Mediumterm loans for Agricultural Purposes published by the Agricultural Credit Department of the Reserve Bank of India in June 1966. This Manual has since undergone some revisions and the revised edition entitled

CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT, BANKING AND FINANCE (contd.)

INDIA_ (contd.)

Language : English

Manual on Production Oriented System of Lending for Agriculture was published in August 1972. Besides the modifications in the revised Manual, certain other changes relating to aspects such as security for loans, loans to tenants-at-will and oral lesses, removal of the restriction on direct finance by commercial banks, etc. were also effected subsequent to the publication of the Guidelines. In view of these changes, it was considered desirable that the Guidelines to Commercial Banks should be suitably revised and reprinted. It is hoped that this revised edition will be useful to commercial banks and their field officers in dealing with various operational aspects of the financing of primary agricultural credit societies in their jurisdiction."

PATEL, M.R. :

Speech Delivered by Shri M.R. Patel (Author), Chairman of the All India State Co-operative Banks Federation, Bombay on the occasion of the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the Federation at Aurangabad on Saturday the 17th November 1973. The All India State Co-operative Banks Federation, Garment House, 2nd Floor, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli Bombay-400 018, 1973, pages 15, non-priced.

SUBASH CHANDRA:

U.P. State Cooperative Land Development Bank Limited. (A Study). Co-operative Training College, Mausambagh, Sitapur Road

Co-operative Training College, Mausambagh, Sitapur Road, Lucknow-226-006, U.P. 1973, pages 11 + III (mimeo).

The object of this study is to highlight the problems of the U.P. State Co-operative Land Development Bank Limited and to suggest certain practical solutions. The author has touched the structural and administrative side in more details while legal and procedural aspects have also been dealt with. The suggestions offered by the author in this study shall be useful for concerned authorities.

CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT, BANKING AND FINANCE (contd.)

INDIA (contd.)

Language : National

BALAN, T.S. :

Latest Trends in the Co-operative Agricultural Credit (MALAYALAM).
State Co-operative Union, Trivandrum -1, Kerala State, 1973-74, pages 110, price Indian Rs. 2.00

The publication contains ten chapters: four chapters about Co-operative Credit in general and the rest six chapters dealing with the latest trends like Credit Card system structural change in Co-operative Credit, Commercial Bank and Agricultural Credit, and Agricultural Refinance Corporation and Land Development Banks.

IRAN

Language : English

AGRICULTURAL COOPERATIVE BANK OF IRAN:

Annual Report for the Year 1351, (March 21, 1972-March 20, 1973).

Agricultural Cooperative Bank of Iran, 1973, pages ...

JAPAN

Language : English

CENTRAL COOPERATIVE BANK FOR-AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY:

Present Condition of Cooperative Finance for
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishery in Japan 1973.

Economic Research Department, The Central Co-operative Bank
for Agriculture & Foresty (the NORINCHUKIN BANK) 1-1-12,
Uchi-kanda, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 56.

The publication has been divided in the

CO_OPERATIVE CREDIT, BANKING AND FINANCE (contd.)

JAPAN (contd.)

Language : English

following four sections :

1. Agriculture:
i- agriculture in Japan, ii-Rural Economic Conditions,
iii- Outline of the Government-supported Agricultural
Finance System, and iv- Outline of Co-operative Finance.

2. Fishery:
i- Fishery in Japan, ii- Fishery Co-operative System and its Activities, and iii- Cooperative Finance in Fishery.

3. Forestry:
i- Forestry in Japan, ii- Forstry Co-operative System and
its Activities, iii- Cooperative Finance in Forestry.

its Activities, iii- Cooperative Finance in Forestry.

The Norinchukin Bank (The Central Cooperative Bank for Agriculture and Forestry):

i- General Function, ii- Organization, iii- Business Activities, and iv- Financial Status.

MALAYSIA

Language : English

MALACCA GOVERNMENT & MUNICIPAL SERVANTS: COOPERATIVE THRIFT & LOAN SOCIETY LTD:

With Annual General Meeting (MALAYSIAN ALSO).
The Malacca Government and Muncipal Servants'
Cooperative Thrift and Loan Society Ltd., Stadt Huys,
P.O. Box 194, Malacca, 1973, pages 44, non-priced.

POSTAL AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS CO-OPERATIVE THRIFT AND LOAN SOCIETY WEST MALAYSIA LIMITED:
46th Annual Report 1972 (MALAYSIAN ALSO).
The postal And Telecommunications Cooperative Thrift and Loan Society, West Malaysia, Limited, 1973, pati Surat 615, Kuala Lumpur, pages 72.

CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT, BANKING AND FINANCE (contd.)

SINGAPORE

Language : English

PORT OF SINGAPORE AUTHORITY EMPLOYEES!

COOPERATIVE THRIFT & LOAN-SOCIETY LTD.:

49th Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 1973.

The Port of Singapore Authority Employees! Co-operative Thrift & Loan Society, Ltd. Tanjong Pagar, Singapore-2, 1974, pages 43.

SINGAPORE MARCHANTILE CO-OPERATIVE THRIFT ANDLOAN SOCIETY LTD.:

43rd Anniversary-"Dinner and Dance" 20th Oct. 1973

Hotel Royal.

The Singapore Mercantile Co-operative Thrift and
Loan Society Ltd., Singapore, 1973, pages ...

AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES

(contd.)

BANGLADESH

Language : English

HUSSAIN, Md. Zaker:

Bamail Co-operative Farm.
Bangladesh Academy for Rural Development, Kotbari, Comilla, 1973, pages 125, price Bangladesh TK 8.50

It is the case study of the village Bamail Co-operative Farm. The village Bamail is situated in the northeastern part of the Comilla Kotwali Thana, and about four miles from Comilla town on the bank of rever Gomti, near the boarder of Indian State, Tripura.

AHMED, Badruddin: Language: National Krishi Samabaya (BENGALI)
Bangaladesh Academy for Rural Development, Kotbari, Comilla, 1973, pages 80, price Bangladesh TK. 5.00

A Report on the Agricultural Co-operative Seminar of Comilla Thana Co-operators.

JAPAN .

Language : English

CENTRAL UNION OF AGRICULTURAL COOPERATIVES:

Agriculture and Agricultural Co-operative Movement in Japan.
The Central Union of Agricultural Co-operatives, (ZEN-CHU), 8-3, 1-chome, Ohtemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 54.

The publication has been divided into three parts. The first part, deals with the general agriculture of Japan, second Part, deals with the co-operative movement of Japan with special reference to agricultural co-operatives, and the third part contains information on the aims, objectives and functions of main national level co-operative organizations of Japan.

The various aspects and organizations dealt under

AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

(contd.) JAPAN

Language : English

three parts are as follows:

- Part I: Agriculture in Japan: 1-conditions of nature, 2- pre and post-war developments in agriculture, 3- agricultural production, 4- farm households and farm labor, 5- agricultural inputs, 6- agricultural finance, 7- farm household economy, 8- trends in agricultural policy, and 9- new tasks and adjustments in Japanese agriculture.
- Part II: Co-operative Movement in Japan: 1-cooperative movement in the prewar period, 2- postwar developments in agricultural co-operative movement, 3- organization of agricultural co-operatives, 4-organization of a multi-purpose primary agricultural cooperative . society, 5- activities of multi-purpose primary agricultural cooperatives and the role played by federations, and 6- problems facing the agricultural co-operative movement and adjustments.
- Part -III: Appendix : Information on Apex Cooperative Organizations of Japan:
 - 1- Central Union of Agricultural Cooperatives,
 - 2- National Federation of Agricultural Cooperative Associations,
 - 3- The National Mutual-Insurance Federation of Agricultural Co-operatives,
 - 4- Central Co-operative Bank for Agriculture and Forestry, 5- Ie-No-Hikari Publishing Association,

 - 6- National Press and Information Federation of Agricultural Cooperatives,
 - 7- National Welfare Federation of Agricultural Co-operatives,
 - 8- National Association of (Prefectural) Credit Federations,
 - 9- National Travel Association of Agricultural Co-operatives,
 - 10- UNICOOPJAPAN,
 - 11- IDACA(the Institute for the Development of Agricultural Cooperation in Asia), and
 - 12- Pension Association for Officers and Employees of Agriculture, Forestry, and Fisheries Organizations.

AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

JAPAN (contd.)

Language : English

CENTRAL UNION OF AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES:

Development of Agricultural Cooperatives and

Government Of Agricultural Cooperatives and Government Assistance - The Japanese Case. The Central Union of Agricultural Co-operatives (ZEN-CHU), 8-3, 1-chome, Ohtemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 14.

The assistance provided by the Government of Japan to its agricultural co-operatives, may be classified into four catagories: i- Legal assistance, ii- Assistance through agricultural policies, iii- Fiscal and financial assistance, and iv- Assistance through education.

In this publication an attempt has been to elaborate the above four types of assistance.

The publication has been divided into six sections. Each section discusses various phases of assistance given. Section One (- 1900) regarding the before Enactment of Cooperative Society Law, section two (1900 - 1930) regarding Start of Co-operatives as Legal Entities and Establishment of Co-operative Federations under growing Capitalist Economy, Section Three (1930-1936) regarding Agricultural Panic and Spread of Co-operative Movement, Section Four (1937-1945) regarding Wartime Economic Regime and Step Toward Goward Government Agent, Section Five (1946-1959) regarding Postwar Rural Democratization, Economic Recovery, and Rise of Agricultural Co-operatives and their Subsequent Succumbing to Management difficulties, and Section Six (1960 -) regarding agricultural trade liberalization, structural reform policy and Response of Agricultural Co-operatives.

CENTRAL UNION OF AGRICULTURAL COOPERATIVES:

Annual Report - 1973.
The Central Union of Agricultural Cooperatives,
8-3, 1-chome, Ohtemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, Japan, 1973,
pages 28.

AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

JAPAN (contd.)

Language : National

CENTRAL UNION OF AGRICULTURAL COOPERATIVES:
Agricultural Co-operative Year -Book (JAPANESE).
The Central Union of Agricultural Co-operatives (ZEN_CHU), 8-3, 1-chome, Ohtemachi, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo, 1973, page's 394, price Japanese y 1,900.

Language : English

ICA(New Delhi):

Amalgamation of Primary Co-operatives - The Japanese Experience, by Lionel Gunawardana. International Cooperative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, India, 1973, pages 117, price Indian Rs. 15.00

It is a study of the amalgamation of Primary Co-operatives in Japan. It is based on the author's extensive study tours and on the spot observation of the working of the Agricultural Co-operatives in Japan.

The personal interviews of the office bearers of the societies helped the author to understand the problems faced by the Co-operatives and to draw the conclusions. Therefore, the observations and conclusions of this study will be useful guidelines to the Co-operative Movement of the Region on the subject of amalgamation. The study has been divided into the following nine chapters; with two case studies:

- 1. A brief historical survey of the Japanese agricultural co-operative movement,
- 2. Amalgamation, 3. Policy formulation, Legal provision for amalgamation, 5- Procedure of amalgamation, 6- Problems in the process of amalgamation, 7- Effects of amalgamation, 8- Problems faced by co-operatives after amalgamation, 9- Conclusion, 10- case studies:
 - 1- Azumi Agricultural Cooperative Society, and 2- Minakuchi Agricultural Cooperative Society.

AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

REPUBLIC OF KOREA

Language : English

NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL COOPERATIVE FEDERATION:

Annual Report 1972.

Research Department, National Agricultural Cooperative Federation, 75, 1-ka, Choongjung-Ro, Sudaemoon-ku, Seoul Republic of Korea, 1973, pages 36.

PHILIPPINES

Language : English

MARTINEZ, Juan Ferrer:

The Role of Compact, Farmers' Groups In Restructuring the Agricultural Cooperatives in the Province of Pangasinan (Philippines). Agricultural Credit Administration, Urdaneta, Pangasinan, Philippines, 1972, pages 17.

This booklet was submitted as a paper in the International Cooperative Alliance Region Seminar on Multi-Purpose Cooperative Societies with Special Reference to Japan, held in Tokyo (Japan) 1972. The paper is the "summary of the Report On The Role of Compact Farmers! Groups In Restructuring The Agricultural Cooperatives In The Province of Pangasinan (Philippines). This report covers the background or history of the Agricultural Credit Administration (ACA), the Government agency charged with the extension of credit to small farmers and at the same time entrusted with the task of strengthening the agricultural cooperatives with the end in view of making the Farmers' Cooperatives viable and more responsive to the needs of the farmers -- the backbone of the country's economy. The main focus of this brochure, however, is the role of the compact farmers' groups---locally known as "Saranay/Damayan" in revolutioning the Cooperative Movement in Pangasinan (Philippines). divided into related topics which are as follows:

Cooperative Movement in Prospective (Pangasinan), 2.

Saranay/Damayan- New Cooperative Approach,

Concept of Saranay/Damayan,

Saranay/Damayan as a machinery for reform,

Compact Farmers! Groups as a vehicle for dialog

Saranay/Damayan - as a tool for cooperative development,

AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

PHILIPPINES (contd.)

Language : English

7. Saranay/Damayan - a base for a SOLID CLIENTELE, and
 8. Saranay/Damayan Leader as a tool for Education and
 Information to implement the work of Extension worker.

"With this scheme of cooperative approach adopted in Pangasinan making the Saranay/Damayan as a pivotal point of action for which the rural cooperative program of President Ferdinand E. Marcos was envisioned ———— the Saranay/Damayan compact farmers' groups will finally be institutionalized."

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATION

Language : English

IDACA: Ten Years of IDACA.

The Institute for the Development of Agricultural Cooperation in Asia, 24-9, 6-chome, Funabashi-cho, Setagaya-ku, Tokyo, 1973, pages 45.

The present publication commemorate the tenth anniversary of the Institute for the Development of Agricultural Cooperation in Asia (IDACA), with its activities.

FERTILIZER CO-OPERATIVES

INDIA

Language: English

NCDC: Co-operative Granular Fertiliser Units: Report of the Techno-Economic Study Team.

National Co-operative Development Corporation,
C-56, South Extension, Part-II, New Delhi-110 049, 1973, pages 176, non-priced.

This report throws light on some of the important issues relating to the planning and establishment of granulation and production problems, the economics of their working in relation to large scale units and their methods of marketing. It has also given the future scope for this industry in the context of the over-all-national plans for the production of fertilisers.

FISHERIES CO-OPERATIVES

BANGLADESH

Language: English

Report on the Co-operative Fishery Movement in Bangladesh, by K.S. Ponnuthurai.
International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43-Friends' Colony, New Delhi-110 014, India, 1973, pages 75 (Mimeo).

This is the report of an ICA expert appointed to Study the Working of the Co-operative Fishery Movement in Bangladesh. The objective of the Study was to find out the present situation regarding the fishery industry and the fishery co-operatives in Bangladesh and on the basis of the study, to indicate the ways in which fishery co-operatives could be developed and to ascertain the requirements of fishery co-operatives in the field of education and training and technical assistance. The report has been divided into the following five chapters:

- 1. Present position regarding the Fishery Industry in Bangladesh,
- 2. Present condition of Fishery Co-operative in Bangladesh.
- 3. Future Development of the Co-operative Fishery Movement in Bangladesh.
- 4. Requirements of Fishery Co-operatives in the field of Education and Training and Technical Assistance, and and
- 5. Summary of Recommendations:

SERVICE CO-OPERATIVES

INDIA

Language: English

PIGDAMBER (SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETY LIMITED):

Notice for General Meeting and Annual Report Year 1972-73.

Service Co-operative Society Limited, Pigdamber,
Tehsil Mhow, District Indore, M.P., 1973, pages 20 (mimeo.),
non-priced.

Deals about the aims and objectives of the Service Co-operative Society Limited, Pigdamber, Tehsil Mhow, District Indore, M.P., which got good success with the imspiration and assistance of the Co-operative Education Field Project of the International Co-operative Alliance and the National Co-operative Union of India, Indore, M.P., India.

CO-OPERATIVE PROCESSING

INDIA

Language: English

RAO, S.B.:

Finances of Sugar Factories. Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Co-operative Management, R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-16, 1973, pages 29 (mimeo).

This is a report on the study of finances of sugar factories in the country for the year 1967-68. The study covers nine co-operative and another nine private sugar factories spread all over the country. The sugar factories has been selected in such a way that they represent a fair cross-section of the industry in the country. The names of the sugar factories included in the study are also given in the report. Main aspects dealt are: i-Introduction, 2-Profits and profitability, 3-Resources, 4-Layout of finances, 5-Summing up, and 6-List of sugar factories included in the study.

Language: National

RAJASTHAN (REGISTRAR OF CO-OPERATIVE SOCIETIES):
Rajasthan Kee Mal Sanvar Sahakari Ikaiyan (HINDI).
Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Rajasthan, Jaipur,
Rajasthan, 1973, pages 6 (folder).

The folder deals with the achievements and working of co-operative processing units in Rajasthan State of India.

CO-OPERATIVE TRADE AND MARKETING

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

ICA: International Cooperative Trade in South-East Asia, by M.V. Madane.
International Cooperative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43-Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, (India), 1973, pages 42, price Indian Rs. 3.00

The booklet has been prepared as a part of the follow-up action initiated by ICA on the resolution concerning development of cooperative trade passed at ICA Congress held at Hamburg in 1969. The resolution, among other things, called upon the ICA to "develop a general report on the trade taking place between cooperatives in the various countries and between countries!"

The book has been devided in three Parts, part 1st contains information on: Trading by Cooperatives, Joint Buying and Selling, Aided Trade Agreements, Benefits of Trade Across National Boundaries, Problems in respect of Cooperative Trade of Developing Countries, Line of Future Action by Developing Countries, Action by International Organisations, Recommendations to the ICA by various conferences and meetings on the promotion of Cooperative Trade and Recent Developments.

Second Part Discusses present positions in regional

Countries consisting of : Australia, Bangladesh, India, Indonesia, Iran, Japan, Republic of Korea, Malaysia, Philippines, Sri Lanka and Thailand.

Part Third provides information on the trading done and commodities traded, turnover of Cooperative Marketing Societies of the region.

AUSTRALIA

Language : English

PRODUCERS' COOPERATIVE DISTRIBUTING SOCIETY LTD:

Annual Report : 1972.
The Producers' Cooperative Distributing Society Ltd.,
Quay & Valentine Streets Sydney 2000, P.O. K 403,
Haymarket N.S.W. 2000, 1973, pages 12.

CO_OPERATIVE TRADE AND MARKETING (Contd.)

AUSTRALIA (contd.)

Language : English

WESTERN AUSTRALIAN BARLEY MARKETING BOARD:

Annual Report 1973, The Western Australian Barley Marketing Board, 22, Delhi Street, West Perth, W.A. 6005, 1973, pages 8, non-priced.

It is a annual report on the activities of the Western Australian Barely Marketing Board during 1972-73.

INDIA

Language : English

MARKEED:

Wheat Procurement Scheme Guidelines - 1973-74. The Punjab State Cooperative Supply and Marketing Federation Ltd., P.B. No. 67, Sector 17-E, Chandigarh, 1973. pages 99.

This book contains guidelines and policy circulars of Government of India and Punjab for the procurement of Wheat through PunjabState Cooperative Supply and Marketing Federation Ltd., during 1973-74.

NAFED:

A Glimpse of NAFED's Progress 1970-1972. National Agricultural Co-operative Marketing Federation Ltd., Sapna Building 54, East of Kailash New Delhi-110024, India, pages 23.

Discusses the working of National Agricultural Cooperative Marketing Federation Ltd. of India during 1970-1972. Comparative statistics showing the progress of organization from 1965-72 are also given.

CO_OPERATIVE TRADE AND MARKETING (contd.)

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

NAFED :NAFED Marches Ahead - In the Sector of Agricultural Co-operative Marketing.

National Agricultural Cooperative Marketing Federation Limited, Sapna Building, 54, East of Kailash, New Delhi-110024, pages 7 (in folder).

Borcucher deals with the - Brief History, Objects, Membership, Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Sub-Committees, Branches, Present Operations, Exports, Commodities Exported, Inter-State Trade, Imports & Distribution, Progress, New Avenues, NAFED's Desire and Prospects.

It also provides statistices of share capital, purchase sales and net profits of the Organization during 1958-70.

--- :Annual Report 1971-1972.

The National Agricultural Co-operative Marketing
Federation Limited, 54, East of Kailash, New Delhi-110024,
1973. pages 18 + Statement of Accounts.

RAO, S.B. :
Distributive Trade in Poona.
(Consumers Studies - 9).

Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Cooperative Management, R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-411016 (India) 1973, pages 310 (mimeo).

The objective of the study is to discuss the followings:

1. Characterstics of the trade, 2. Who enters business, 3. Business Practices, 4- Economics of trade and 5. Employment.

The book has been divided in to IV Chapters :-

I. Bird's Eye View of Distributive Trade, II. Shops Selling Goods, III. Shops Selling Services, and IV. Shops Selling Goods And Services.

The study provides interesting informations regarding the

CO-OPERATIVE TRADE AND MARKETING (contd.)

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

pathetic state of consumers cooperatives in Poona city which is city of the cooperatively most advance state of India and also under the nose of Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Cooperative Management, Poona, This study on distributive trade in Private sector will be a good guidlines for consumers cooperatives. It will explain to cooperatives how and why these private retailess are functioning well and are giving so good goods and good services to the consumers that consumer cooperatives even if started never survive.

U.P. COOPERATIVE FEDERATION LTD. :

Cooperatives Serving The Farmers & Consumers. U.P. Cooperative Federation Ltd., 6, Capper Road, Lucknow, India, 1973, pages 26, (mimeo).

It highlights the aims, objectives, structure and functioning of Uttar Pradesh Cooperative Marketing Federation Ltd. • Statistics showing business turnover of the Federation for 1942-1972 are also given.

- U.P. COOPERATIVE FEDERATION LIMITED :
 - Activities of the U.P. Cooperative Federation Limited, Lucknow, at a Glance.
 - U.P. Cooperative Federation Limited, 6, Capper Road, Lucknow, three folder.
- - Sailent Features of U.P. Co-operative Federation Limited, Lucknow. The U.P. Cooperative Federation Limited, 6, Napper Road, Lucknow, 1973, pages 7, non-priced.

CO-OPERATIVE TRADE AND MARKETING (Contd.)

INDIA (contd.)

Language : National

RAJASTHAN (REGISTRAR OF COOPERATIVE SOCIETIES):

Kraya-Vikraya Sahakari Samitiyon ke Naye Karya, (HINDI).

Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Rajasthan, Jaipur,

1973, pages 6, (folder).

The folder gives the guidelines to the Cooperative purchaging and marketing societies for their services, what they can do for the improvement of the socio-economic conditions of the people in the State.

NEW ZEALAND

Language : English

NEW ZEALAND COOPERATIVE PIG MARKETING ASSOCIATION LTD.:

Annual Report - 1973.

The New Zealand Co-operative Pig Marketing Association Ltd. New Zealand, 1973, pages ..

CONSUMERS! CO-OPERATIVES

INDIA

Language: English

KERALA STATE CO-OPERATIVE UNION:
Co-operative Consumer Movement in Kerala.
State Co-operative Union, Trivandrum, Kerala, 1973, pages 16, non-priced.

It is a working paper presented to the State Conference on "Co-operative Consumer Movement in Kerala", held at Trivandrum on 6th and 7th July 1973.

- - : Resolutions of Conference on "Co-operative Consumer Movement in Kerala".

State Co-operative Union, Trivandrum, Kerala, 1973, pages 6 (mimeo).

Deals with the Resolutions passed by the State Conference on "Co-operative Consumer Movement in Kerala", held at Trivandrum, Kerala State of India, on 6th and 7th July, 1973,

RAO, S,B.:

Distributive Trade in Poona (Consumers Studies - 9). Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Co-operative Management, R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-411016, 1973, pages 310 (mimeo).

The objective of the study is to discuss the followings:

- 1. Characteristics of the trade,
- 2. Who enters business,
- Business practices,
- 4. Economics of trade, and
- 5. Employment.

The book has been divided in to IV Chapters:

- I. Bird's eye view of distributive trade,
- II, Shops selling goods,
- III, Shops selling services, and
- IV. Shops selling goods and services.

The study provides interesting informations regarding the

CONSUMERS! CO-OPERATIVES (contd.)

IIDIA (contd.)

Language : English

pathetic state of consumers co-operatives in Poona city which is city of the co-operatively most advance state of India and which is also under the nose of Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Co-operative Management, Poona. This study on distributive trade in Private sector will be a good guidlines for consumers co-operatives. It will explain to co-operatives that how and why these private retailers are functioning well and are giving so good goods and good services to the consumers that consumer co-operatives even if started never survive in Poona.

IRAN

Language : English

SEPAH CONSUMERS CO-OPERATIVE:

Annual Report for the year ending 20th March 1973. Sepah Consumers Co-operative, Avenue Amir-abad Shomali, Iran Novin Corner, Teheran, Iran, 1973, pages 21+Balance Sheet.

YOUTH AND CO-OPERATIVES

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

Co-operation and Youth, by P.E. Weeraman (Speeches on Co-operation Series No. 12).
International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43-Friends's Colony New Delhi-110 014, India, 1973, pages 7, non-priced.

It is a valedictory address delivered by Mr. P.E. Weeraman, ICA Regional Director for South-East Asia at the "13th Inter-University National Debate on Co-operation", held at Aligarh, on February 23-25, 1973 under the auspices of the Committee for Co-operative Training of the National Co-operative Union of India.

CO-OPERATIVE AID & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

INDIA

Language : English

CCT: Co-operative Training Programme for Foreign Scholars in India.

Committee for Co-operative Training (National Co-operative Union of India), 34 South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110 008, pages 37.

CO-OPERATIVE LEGISLATION

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

ICA: A Model Co-operative Societies Law, by P.E. Weeraman. International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43-Friends Colony, New Delhi-110014, India, 1973, (Revised edition), pages 45, price Indian Rs. 3.00

The Model Law is based on the Co-operative Societies Ordinance appearing in the 1956 Revision of the Legislative Enactments of Sri Lanka. The author has also consulted the Committee for Co-operative Law appointed by the Government of India in 1957 and the "Manual of Co-operative Law and Practice", by Surridge and Digby (1967).

This Model Law was first prepared and published in January 1971. It has since been revised. The principal charge in this revision is the omission of the provision empowering the government to make Rules.

AUSTRALIA

Language : English

- N S W: Cooperative Regulations, 1961 (As Amended upto 17th August 1973).

 Published by the Authority, V.C.N. Blight, C.B.E. Government Printer, New South Wales, Australia, 1973.
- -- -: Cooperation Act, 1923 (Certified 18th January 1973).
 Published by the Authority, V.C.N. Blight, C.B.E. Government
 Printer, New South Wales, 1973, pages 217.
- -- : Co-operative and Other Acts (Amendment) Act, 1973, Act No. 15, 1973.

 Published by the Authority, V.C.N. Blight, C.B.E. Government Printers, New South Wales, 1973, pages 17.

BANGLADESH

Language: National

- BNSU: Bhogga Pann Sarbaraha Samabaya Samity (Bye-Laws of Consumers' Supply Co-operative Society) (BENGALI).
 Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Co-operative Union) "Samabaya Sadan", 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area (1st Floor), Dacca 2, 1973, pages 28, price Bangladesh Tk. 2.25
- -: Multipurpose Society Upabidhi (BENGALI).
 Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Co-operative Union), 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area, Dacca-2, 1973, pages 30, price Bangladesh Tk. 3.25
- - : Autorickshow Samabaya Samity Upabidhi (Autorickshow Co-operative Society Bye-Laws) (BENGALI).

 Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Co-operative Union), 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area, Dacca-2, 1973, pages 32, price Bangladesh Tk. 3.25
- - -: Griha Nirman Samabaya Samity Upabidhi (Bye-Laws of Housing Co-operative Society) (BENGALI).

 Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Co-operative Union), 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area, Dacca-2, 1973, pages 34, price Bangladesh Tk. 3.25
- -: Krishi Samabaya Samity Upabidhi (Bye-Laws of Agricultural Co-operative Society) (BENGALI).

 Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Co-operative Union), 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area, Dacca-2, 1973, pages 38, price Bangladesh Tk. 2.25
- -: Matshajibi Samabaya Samity Upabidhi (Bye-Laws of Fishermen Co-operative Society) (BENGALI).

 Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Co-operative Union), 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area, Dacca-2, 1973, pages 40, price Bangladesh Tk. 3.25
- -- -: Tantubaya Co-operative Samity Upabidhi (BENGALI).
 Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Co-operative Union), 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area,
 Dacca-2, 1973, pages 40, price Bangladesh Tk. 3.25

INDIA

Language : English

- ICA: Indian Co-operative Laws Vis-a-Vis Co-operative Principles, by P.E. Weeraman, R.C. Dwivedi, and P. Sheshadri. The National Co-operative Union of India, 72-Jorbagh, New Delhi-110 003, 1973, pages 564, price Indian Rs. 40.00
 - /is The purpose of the study/to findout the confirmity of Co-operative Principles In enacting Co-operative Laws in India.

The book deals with the Co-operative Societies Acts of the various States of India and brings together the laws, recent legal judgements, comments in reports of Commissions and Committees, and important pronouncements which have a bearing on the Co-operative Principles. The Study Team has made its own comments and recommendations.

The book suggests improvements in Co-operative Law with a view to making them more conducive to the proper and healthy development of the co-operative movement and its leadership.

This work should prove very useful to those who wish to study co-operation in depth or are charged with the task of co-operative development as well as to alwayers in dealing with matters relating to co-operative societies,

UTTAR PRADESH CO-OPERATIVE UNION LIMITED:

Bye-Laws (Registration No. 391 dated 9th July, 1928, Amendments upto 16-8-1969). The Uttar Pradesh Co-operative Union Limited, 14 Vidhan Sabha Marg, Lucknow, U.P., pages 32.

Language : National

ICA/NCUI CO-OPERATIVE EDUCATION FIELD PROJECT:
Seva Sahkari Samiti Kee Upvidhiyan (HINDI).
ICA-NCUI Co-operative Education Field Project,
19 Race Course Road, Indore, M.P., 1973, pages 42.

Discusses Bye-Laws and rules of Co-operative Service Societies.

MALAYSIA

Language : English

MALAYSIAN CO-OPERATIVE PRINTING PRESS SOCIETY LIMITED:
By-Laws of the Malaysian Co-operative Printing Press
Society Limited.
The Malaysian Co-operative Printing Press Society Limited,
120, Jalan Semangat, Petaling Jaya, Malaysia, pages 13
(mimeo.).

SRI LANKA

Language: English .

SRI LANKA (CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF):

By-Laws of the Vidhyalaya Co-operative
Society Limited.

Department of Co-operative Development, Government of
Sri Lanka, Duke Street, P.O. Box 419, Colombo-1, 1973,
pages 8 (mimeo.), non-priced.

SRI LANKA (NATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE COUNCIL OF):
By-Laws of the National Co-operative Council of Sri Lanka
Limited.
The National Co-operative Council of Sri Lanka Limited,
Co-operative House, 455-Galle Road, Colombo-3, 1972 (with
Amendments), pages 28.

Language : National

SRI LANKA (CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF):
By-Laws of School Co-operative Societies (SINHALA).
Department of Co-operative Development, Government of Sri Lanka, Duke Street, P.O. Box 419, Colombo-1, 1973, pages 8, non-priced.

THAILAND

Language : English

THAILAND (CO-OPERATIVE PROMOTION DEPARTMENT):

By-Laws of the Agricultural Co-operative Limited.

Land Settlement Co-operative Division, Co-operative Promotion Department, Government of Thailand, Bangkok-2, pages 56 (mimeo.), non-priced.

Language : National

THATLAND (CO-OPERATIVE MARKETING AND PURCHASING FEDERATION OF):
Bye-Laws (THAI).
The Co-operative Marketing and Purchasing Federation of
Thailand, Limited, 9. Rajadhamri Road, Bangkok, 1973,
pages 16 (Mimeo.).

THAILAND (CO-OPERATIVE PROMOTION DEPARTMENT):

By-Laws of the Land Settlement Co-operatives (Limited Liability) (THAI).

Land Settlement Co-operative Division, Co-operative Promotion Department, Government of Thailand, Bangkok-2, 1973, pages 45.

- --: By-Laws of the Land Settlement Co-operative (Unlimited Liability) (THAI).

 Land Settlement Co-operative Division, Co-operative Promotion Department, Government of Thailand, Bangkok-2, 1973, pages 44.
- --: By-Laws of the Land Hire-Purchase Co-operatives (Limited Liability) (THAI).

 Land Settlement Co-operative Division, Co-operative Promotion Department, Government of Thailand, Bangkok-2, 1973, pages 45.
- ---: By-Laws of the Land Hire-Purchase Co-operatives (Unlimited Liability) (THAI).

 Land Settlement Co-operative Division, Co-operative Promotion Department, Government of Thailand, Bangkok-2, 1973, pages 43.

THAILAND (contd.)

Language : National

THAILAND (CO-OPERATIVE PROMOTION DEPARTMENT):

By-Laws of the Land Tenant Co-operatives (Limited Liability) (THAI).

Land Settlement Co-operative Division, Co-operative Promotion Department, Government of Thailand, Bangkok-2, 1973, pages 45.

-- -: By-Laws of the Land Tenant Co-operatives (Unlimited Liability) (THAI).

Land Settlement Co-operative Division, Co-operative Promotion Department, Government of Thailand, Bangkok-2, 1973, pages 40.

CO-OPERATIVE EDUCATION

BANGLADESH

Language : National

BJSU: Ganashikhar Bai 'O' Pathya Shuchi (Syllebus and Hist of Books on Mass Education) (BENGALI).

Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Cooperative Union) "Samabaya Sadan" 9-D, Motijheel Commercial Area, (1st Floor), Dacca-2, pages 16, price Bangladesh Tk. 00.50

INDIA

Language : English

C C T (New Delhi):

A Resume of the XII Inter University National Debate On Cooperation. "Growth with Social Justice in India can be achieved only through cooperative movement", held at Ranchi University, Ranchi on February 11-12, 1972. Committee for Cooperative Training (National Cooperative Union of India) 34, South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, (India) 1972, pages 39.

The programme of Eassay and Debating Competitions on Cooperation organised by the Committee for Cooperative Training, as a measure to promote knowledge of Cooperation among the student community, has been increasingly becoming popular. The debating competitions are organised at two levels:

- i) At the University level through the Inter-College debating competitions, and
- ii) at the National level, through the Inter-University debating competitions.

The eassay competitions are organised only at the university level.

The XII Inter-University National Debate on Cooperation commenced on 11-2-1972 at 10.00 A.M. at the Ranchi University, Ranchi. The subject of the Debate was "Growth with Social Justice in India can be achieved only through the Cooperative Movement".

CO-OPERATIVE EDUCATION (contd.)

INDIA (contd.)

Language : English

CCT: Cooperative Training Programmes 1973-74.

Committee for Co-operative Training (National Cooperative Union of India), 34 South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, 1973, pages 66, (mimeo).

This is the calendar of courses for the 12th year of the Committee for Co-operative Training since it took over the co-operative training programme from the erstwhile Central Committee for Co-operative Training (Reserve Bank of India) in July 1962. As many as 120 programmes (301 sessions) are included in the calendar for 1973-74 against 77 programmes (189 sessions) in the previous year. Of these, 14 programmes are proposed to be organised at Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Cooperative Management, Poona, for senior and key personnel, while 106 programmes (287 sessions) are listed at Co-operative Training Colleges meant for intermediate level personnel.

The calendar is divided into four parts. :

Part- I, deals with the programmes for senior and key personnel offerred at Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Cooperative Management, Poona, Part - II, gives Collegewise, Part - III, sector-wise and Part-IV date-wise calendar of courses at the Co-operative Training Colleges.

- -- : Cooperative Training Programme for Foreign Scholars in India.

 Committee for Cooperative Training (National Cooperative Union of India), 34, South Patel Nagar, New Delhi 110008, India, pages 37.
- -- 10th Annual Report 1971-1972.

 Committee for Co-operative Training (National Cooperative Union of India) 34 South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008, 1973, pages 181, non-priced.
- -- Committee for Co-operative Training of the
 National Co-operative Union of India A Profile.
 Committee for Co-operative Training (National Cooperative
 Union of India) 34 South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008,
 1973, pages 6 (folder type) non-priced.

MULTIPURPOSE COOPERATIVES

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Language : English

ICA: Report of the Regional Seminar on Multi-Purpose Cooperative Societies with Special Reference to Japan.
International Cooperative Alliance, Regional Office & Education Centre for South-East Asia, 43 Friends Colony, New Delhi-1100014, India, 1973, pages 38, price Indian Rs. 5.00

Report deals with the Regional Seminar on "Multi-purpose Cooperative Societies with Special Reference to Japan
which held by the International Cooperative Alliance Regional
Office & Education Centre for South East Asia, New Delhi
(India) in collaboration with the Central Union of
Agricultural Cooperatives in Japan, and the Institute for
the Development of Agricultural Cooperatives in Asia
(IDACA), Tokyo, Japan, from 16th May to 6th June, 1972,
at IDACA in Tokyo.

The countries which participated in the Seminar were Bangladesh, India, Indonesia, Iran, Republic of Korea, Malaysia, Philippines, Singapore, Sri Lanka(Ceylon), and Thailand.

The objectives of the Seminar were as follows:

- i. to discuss the concept of a multi-purpose coopérative society,
- ii. to discuss methods of integration of credit supply, marketing etc. through multi-purpose cooperatives,
- iii. to discuss the management questions of multi-purpose cooperatives and
- iv. to study the working of the multi-purpose cooperatives in Japan.

CO-OPERATIVE BOOK-KEEPING AND MANAGEMENT

BANGLADESH

Language : National

BJSU: Barader Hishab (Easy Accountancy for New Literates, Part- I) (BENGALI).

Bangladesh Jatiya Samabaya Union (Bangladesh National Co-operative Union), "Samabaya Sadan", 9-D, Motijheel, Commercial Area, (1st Floor), Dacca-2, 1973, pages 16, price Bangladesh Tk 00.30

INDIA

Language : English

TAIMNI, K.K. :

Professionalization of Management in Cooperatives (A tentative Model with Notes). Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Cooperative Management, R.B.I. Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-411016 (India), 1973, pages 131, (mimeo).

In recent times there has been growing awareness as reflected by various ministerial, Registrars and Cooperative Leaders Conference about the need for a professionaly competative workers to manage the cooperative societies at various level. The new thinking is a welcome trend but the problem is how to start, organize and achieve the professionalization of cooperative managers.

It is in this context that a tentative model for professionalisation of management in cooperative is presented by the author. The model emodies the studied inferences from personal observations and the discussions that the author had with a number of professional managers, cooperative leaders and government officials in India.

The book has been divided in the following three chapters:

- I. The Need, II. A Tentative Model for Professionalisation, III. Notes on Professionalisation of Management:
- 1. Cooperative Integration (Need for Restructuring the Movement), 2. Cooperative Employees Commission of Sri Lanka Relevance to India, 3. Cooperative and the State, 4. Vested Interests in Cooperatives, 5. Role of the Board of Directors and 6. Management Cadres for Cooperatives.

CO. OPERATIVE BOOK KEEPING AND MANAGEMENT (contd.)

(contd.) INDIA

Language : English

TAIMNI, K.K.:

Studies in Purchase Management and Inventory Controls in Co-operative Department Stores. Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Cooperative Management, RBI Building, Ganeshkhind Road, Poona-16, 1972, pages 166, (mimeo).

Study covers the three important consumer's co-operative stores of India, namely; - i. Super Bazar, New Delhi, ii. Chinthamani, Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu), and iii-Jantha Bazar, Bangalore (Karnataka State). The important aspects dealt of different stores are as follows:

1. Super Bazar, New Delhi:

1. Background and organisational set-up, 2. Process of Purchasing, 3. Purchase of Groceries, 4. Purchase of Textiles, 5. Purchase of Household articles, 6- Evaluation of Purchasing Function, 7. Investory Controls, 8- Stock Leakage, 9. Selective Control, 10. Fixation of Stock Level and 11. Summing up.

2Chinthamani - Coimbatore :

- 1. Background of the parent, society, 2. Type of activities, 3. Organisational set-up. 4. Sources of Purchases, 5. Purchase
- of Groeeries. 6. Deterimination of Quantity, 7. Controls,
- 8. Leakages, 9-Purchase of Textiles, 10. Society-Primary. Relationship, 11- Chinthamani-Coimbatore, 12. Background,
- 13. Relationship with Society, 14. Organisations set-up, 15. Purchasing Functions, 16. Leakages, and 17. Summing Up.
- 3. Janatha Bazar Bangalore :
- i) 1. Role of State Federation.
- 2. Background of the State Federation. 3. Purchasing Practices, 4. Federation-Jantha Bazar Relationship, and ii) Janatha Bazar Bangalore -
- - 1. Introduction, 2. Organisational Setup,
 3. Duties of the Staff, 4. Purchasing Practices,
 - 5. Controls Leakages, 6. Summing up.